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INTERIM REVIEW REPORT ON INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(Convenience translation of the independent auditor’s report originally issued in Turkish,

See Note |. of Section three)
To the Board of Directors of Pasha Bank A.S.;

Introduction

We have reviewed the unconsolidated statement of financial position of Pasha Bank A.S. (“the Bank™) at 30 June
2016 and the related unconsolidated income statement, unconsolidated statement of income and expense items
under shareholders’ equity, unconsolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, unconsolidated statement
of cash flows and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes to the unconsolidated
financial statements for the six month-period then ended. The Bank Management is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of interim financial statements in accordance with the “Regulation on Accounting
Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents™ published in the Official Gazette no.26333 dated 1
November 2006, and other regulations on accounting records of Banks published by Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency and circulars and interpretations published by Banking Regulation and Supervision Authority,
(together referred as “BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation™) and Turkish Accounting Standard 34
“Interim Financial Reporting” for those matters not regulated by BRSA Legislation. Our responsibility is to
express a conclusion on these interim financial statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410, *Limited Review
of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review of interim
financia! information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial reporting process,
and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review of interim financial information is substantially
less in scope than an independent audit performed in accordance with the Independent Auditing Standards and the
objective of which is to express an opinion on the financial statements. Consequently, a review of the interim
financial information does not provide assurance that the audit firm will be aware of all significant matters which
would have been identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
unconsolidated financial statements do not give a true view of the financial position of Pasha Bank A.S. at 30 June
2016 and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the six-month-period then ended in all aspects in
accordance with the BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislatjon,

Report on other regulatory requirements arising from legislation

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the financial information
provided in the accompanying interim annual report in Section VII, are not consistent with the unconsolidated
financiat statements and disclosures in all material respects.

A member firm of Ermst & Young Global Limited
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Other Matter

The financial statements of the Bank as of December 31, 2015 and June 30, 2015 were audited and reviewed by
another independent audit firm, who expressed an unqualified opinion and conclusion in their audit and review
reports dated February 22, 2016 and August 3, 2015 respectively.

Additional paragraph for convenience translation to English;

As explained in detail in Note [ of Section Three, the effects of differences between accounting principles and
standards set out by regulations in conformity with BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation) and Turkish
Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting™ except for the matters regulated by BRSA Legislation,
accounting principles generally accepted in countries in which the accompanying unconsolidated financial
statements are to be distributed and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) have not been quantified
in the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the accompanying unconsolidated
financial statements are not intended to present the financial position, results of operations and changes in financial
position and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in such countries and
IFRS.

Gitney Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Musavirlik Anonim Sirketi

istanbul, 8 August 2016



NP2 PASHA
‘%‘f Bank

THE SIX MONTH UNCONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT OF
PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.S. AS OF 30 JUNE 2016

Address of the Bank’s Headquarters : A.O.5.55. Sokak No:2 42 Maslak Ofis 3 Kat:7
34398 Maslak Istanbul, Tlrkiye

Telephone of the Bank :(0212)70589 00

Fax of the Bank :(0212)34507 12

Web site of the Bank : www.pashabank.com.tr

E-mail for correspondence : info@pashabank.com.tr

The unconsolidated six-month financial report includes the following sections in accordance with the Communiqué
on Financial Statements and Related Explanations and Notes that will be Publicly Announced as sanctioned by the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency.

. SECTIONONE - GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK

. SECTION TWO - UNCONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BANK

. SECTION THREE - EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES

. SECTION FOUR - [INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

. SECTION FIVE - EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

SECTION SIX - EXPLANATIONS ON REVIEW REPORT

SECTION SEVEN - INTERIM ACTIVITY REPORT

The accompanying unconsolidated interim financial statements and notes to these financial statements which are
expressed, unless otherwise stated, in thousands of Turkish Lira (*TL"), have been prepared and presented based
on the accounting books of the Bank in accordance with the Regulation on Accounting Applications for Banks and
Safeguarding of Documents, Turkish Accounting Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting Standards, and reiated
appendices and interpretations of these, and have been reviewed.

>
Mesut Ozding N.Stireyya Serdengegti
Chairman of the Board of Directors ~ Chairman of the Audit Committee Member of the Audit Committee
f N
Z } . { 2 )Q _ ;grhw
H}E{E)than Ali [hsan Tokkuzun Yesim Caglar
General Manager Deputy Generat Manager Financial Planning and Control
Manager

Contact information of the personnel in charge of the addressing of questions about this financial report:

Name-Surname/Title : Yesim CAGLAR / Manager
Telephone Number 1 (0212) 705 89 08
Fax Number :{0212)34507 12
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
IN TURKISH, SEE NOTE I OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANK A.S.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 JUNE 2016
{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") uniess otherwise stated.)
SECTION ONE
GENERAL INFORMATION

L. Bank’s foundation date, start-up statute, history about the changes in this mentioned statute:

Bank’s commercial title Pasha Yatinm Bankasi A.S.

Reporting Period 1 January - 30 June 2016

Address of the Bank's Headquarters 4 g 55 Sokak No:2 42 Maslak Ofis 3 Kat:7
34398 Maslak Istanbul, Tiirkiye

Telephone (0212) 705 89 00
Fax (0212)34507 12
Website www.pashabank.com.tr
E-mail infol@pashabank.com.tr

PASHA Yatinm Bankasi1 A.$. (“Bank”, “PASHA Bank™) has been permitted by the decree no. 87/11898
dated 17.06.1987 by the Council of Ministers pursuant to the Banking Law No. 3182 (repealed) and the
Bank has been established under the title of Yatinm Bank A.S. headgquartered in Istanbul under the Foreign
Investment Promotion Law. The establishment of the Bank was permitted by the Ministry of Industry and
Trade on the date of 21.12.1987, the Articles of Association of the Bank was approved by the decision no.
1987/5087 dated 12.25.1987 of the |st Commercial Court of Istanbul, and it was registered with the Istanbul
Trade Registry Office under the no. 240320 on the date of 25.12.1987 and published in the Turkish Trade
Registry Gazette no. 1924 and dated 30 December 1987. Commencing its investment banking activities on
the date of | March 1988, the Bank has been operating as of 30 June 2016 through its head office in Istanbul
only and has no branches.

II. Explanation about the Bank’s capital structure, shareholders of the Bank who are in charge of the
management and/or auditing of the Bank directly or indirectly, changes in these matters (if any)
and the group the Bank belongs to:

With the decision taken by TAIB Bank B.S.C. (c) - previous parent of the Bank- regarding the sale of its
shares in the Bank, a share purchase agreement was signed between the Aksoy Holding A.S. and previous
parent of the Bank on 13 May 2013. Upon the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (‘BRSA”)’s
approval dated 26 June 2013, Aksoy Holding A.S. acquired the 99.4689% of the shares of the Bank. With
the decision taken in the extraordinary general assembly meeting of the Bank dated 31 July 2013 and
numbered 32, share transfer transaction has been approved. The share transfer from previous parent of
the Bank to Aksoy Holding A.$. has been completed as at 2 August 2013.

In the extraordinary general assembly meeting of the Bank dated 31 October 2013, it was decided to
increase the paid-in capital of the Bank to from TL 37,000 to TL 39,000. The paid-in capital of the Bank
was increased to 39,000 TL in accordance with the BRSA’s approval as at 13 November 2013. In the
extraordinary general assembly meeting of the Bank dated 21 November 2013, it was decided to increase
the paid-in capital of the Bank to from TL 39,000 to TL 80,000. The paid-in capital of the Bank was
increased to 80,000 TL in accordance with the BRSA’s approval as at 29 November 2013.

PASHA Bank OJSC and Aksoy Holding A.S. has agreed on transferring the majority shares of the
Bank.Acquisition of TL 28,795,121 of the Bank’s capital and increase in the paid-in capital from TL
80,000 to TL 255,000 upon the Acquisition were approved by the BRSA’s decision dated 26 December
2014. And numbered 6137. The capital increase cash from TL 80,000 to TL 175,000 has been completed.




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
IN TURKISH, SEE NOTE I OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANK A.S.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated.}

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

IIL

Paid-in capital increase from TL 175,000 to TL 255,000, approval of the share transfer and changing the
Bank’s title as “Pasha Yatinm Bankasi A.$.” have been approved in the extra ordinary general assembly
of the Bank dated 27 January 2015.

The change of Bank’s title as “PashaYatinm Bankasi A.S.” registered on 2 March 2015 and announced
on Turkish Trade Registry Gazette dated 6 March 2015 and numbered 8773.

Acquisition of remaining 51,000 shares of Aksoy Holding A.$. by PASHA Bank OJSC by increasing
Pasha Bank OJSC shares from %79.9196 to %99.9196 has been approved by the BRSA’s resolution dated
23 December 2015 and numbered 18038.

As of 24 December 20135, the share transfer was accounted in the statutory accounting records with the
Board decision numbered 2015/110.

Partnership structure of the Bank as of 30 June 2016, is stated below:

Capital Share Rate
PASHA Bank QJISC 254,795 9699.9196
Other 205 %0.0804!
Total 255,000

Explanation on the Board of Directors, members of the audit committce, president and executive
vice presidents, changes in these matters (if any) and shares of the Bank they possess:

Share
Title Name Education Percentage
Chairman of the Board of Directors V! Agha-Ali Kamalov PhD -
Vice President of the Board of Directors (" Jalal Gasimov Postgraduate -
Independent Member of the Board of Directors/ ~ Necip Siireyya Serdengecti Postgraduate -
Member of the Audit Committee
Independent Member of the Board of Directors/ Mesut Ozding Postgraduate -
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Member of the Board of Directors/ Hikmet Cenk Eynehan Postgraduate -
General Manager
Member of the Board of Directorss Shahin Mammadov Postgraduate -
Member of the Board of Directors Taleh Kazimov Postgraduate -
Independent Member of the Board of Directors Adnan Aykol Graduate -
Assistant General Manager Ali Ihsan Tokkuzun Postgraduate -

(1} As of 30 March 2016 ,Agha Ali Kamalov is assigned as Chairman of the Board of Directors ,Jalal Gasimov is
assigned as Vice President of the Board of Directors with the Board decision numbered 2016/22

The shares of the above individuals in the Bank are insignificant,

[ ]



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
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PASHA YATIRIM BANK A.S.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts arc expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (~TL") unless otherwise stated.)

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

IV. Explanation on shareholders having control shares:

Explanation on shareholders having control shares of the Bank as of 30 June 2016, is stated below;

Share
Amounts Share Paid-in Unpaid
Name/Commercial title (nominal) percentage | Capital (nominal) portion
PASHA Holding Ltd. 152,877 %059.95 152,877 -
Ador Ltd. 76,439 %029.98 76,439 -
Aril Pashayev 25.480 949.99 25.480 -
V. Information on the Bank’s service type and field of operations:

The Bank operates as an investment bank and as of 30 June 2016 the Bank has 33 employees

(31 December 2015: 31).

VL Existing or Potential, Actual or Legal obstacles on Immediate Equity Transfer Between the Bank

and its subsidiaries or Repayment of the Debt:

None.
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UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
IN TURKISH, SEE NOTE I OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.S.

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless othenwise stated. )

SECTION TWO

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
L BALANCE SHEET (STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION)

Current Year

Prior Period

ASSETS Dvote 30 June 2016 31 December 2015 =]
(Section
Five-1) TL ¥C Total TL EC Tatal
1. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK (1) 333 14,726 15,059 788 11,875 11,663
1L FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGEH PROFIT 108 R 108
OR LOSS {Net) 2} 604 -l 603
21 Tradmg Financial Assets 408 - EIE] 604 - 604
211 Govermment Debt Secirities - - - - - .
2102 Share Certificales = z N - . P
21,3 | Tmding Derivative Financial Assets 408 Z J0H [ - B
214 Other Marketable Sccurities = S - 3 = z
2ad Financial Asseis Designated at Fair Value tirough Proft of Logs - - - - - -
3310 Government Debt Securitics - = - - - -
T3 | Share Ceriiitcaies N iy N . W z
3 Loans ] o - - - - . -
224 Other Marketable Secunities . = B - " 3
I BANKS (3) 9,015 11,294 20,309 26,028 21,329 47,357
1V. MONEY MARKETS 11,304 - 11,304 - = =
9.1 Interbank Money Market Placements = = 3 B = - =
42 ecenvables from Istanbul Stock Exchanpe Money Marker 11,304 - 11,304 - B -
43 Receivables from Reverse Repurchase Agreements - - - - - 4
V. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Nel 4) 16,539 - 16,539 9,619 < 9619
5l Share Certificates - B . i = i
532 Government Debt Secunitics 11,805 - 11,805 9,619 - 9619
53 Other Markefable Secunities 4,734 E 4,734 - - TS|
V1. LOANS {5) 150,513 76,272 326,785 188,187 57,557 245,744
3 Laans 250,513 76,273 " 336,783] 188187 57557248, 7aa
611 Loans to Bank’s Risk Group - - - 7,620 461 8,082
612 Government Debt Securities o= - - - - . -
613 Other 250,513 76,272 326,785 180,567 51,005 237.662
6.1 Laans under Follow-up - - . - - -
63 Specific Provistons (-} - - p- . 5 i}
VIL. | FACTORING RECEIVABLES - z - z : _
VIIIL. HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES (Net) {6) - - - - | =
81 Government Debt Secunities - - - . B
§ 2 Other Marketable Securiies - - - - - -
X. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Net) {7 - - - - - -
9.1 Consolidated Based on_Equity Method - - - - - 2
[ Unconsolidated = = - - . =
921 Financial Investmenis in Associates - - - - . =
922 Non-financial Investments in Associales - = . 3 - I
X SUBSIDIARIES (Net) m . . z z = i
10.1 Unconsolidated Financtal Subsidianes - - - * F i
10.2 Unconsohdated Non-Financial Subsidiaries - - - - I e
N JOINT VENTURES (Net) ] g - g 5 5 =
151 Consolidated Based on Equity Mcthod - = = - x -
112 Unc lidated = = - . = -
11.21 | Financial Joint Ventures - - - - - =
1122 | Non-finascial Joinl Vepures B - L . - X
XL LEASE RECEIVABLES (Net) {10y - - - - - B
12.1 Financial Lease Receivables - - - - B .
122 Operational Lease Receivables - . . . . .
123 Other = = 5 = M -
124 Uneamed Income ( -} - = 5 . - =
X1 HEDGING DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS {11 - - - . E i
131 Fair Value Hedge . - . - " it
132 Cash Flow Hedge = = e - . =
133 Foreipn Nel Investment Hedpe - - - - 4 |
XIV. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Net) {13) 578 - 578 504 = 504
XV, NTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) (13) 699 - 699 468 = 468
151 Goodwill S = = - % &
15.2 Other 699 - 699 468 = 468
XV, INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Nel) {19} B : : - : .
XVIL. TAX ASSET 353 - 353 708 - 708
171 Current Tax Asset 1] - H] 81 - 81
17.2 Dieferred Tax Asset (15) 271 - 272 627 - 627
XVIH | ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE AND DISCONTINUED
0 OQPERATIONS (Net) (16) " " - - 4 .
18.] Held for Resalc - = B - 5 =
182 Discontinued Operations . - o) P B =
XIX. OTHER ASSETS an 7,164 37 7,201 4,71 37 4,738
TOTAL ASSETS 296,906 102,329 399,235 231,607 90,798 322,405

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
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PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.S.
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (*TL") unless otherwise stated.)

1 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

o Current Year Prior Period
| LIABILITIES » Note 30 Junc 2016 31 December 2015
Section
Five-II) TL FC Total TL FC Total]
L DEPOSITS o - - - . R g
11 Depasits of Bank’s Risk Group B - - - - - -
12 Other - - . - - -
Il. TRADING DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (2) . - - 20 28 48
Il BORROWINGS [E)) 24,007 114,003 138,010 - 71,311 1,311
v, MONEY MARKETS 10,010 - 10,010 - & o
4.1 Funds from Interbank Money Market - - - - - -
42 Funds from Istanbul Stock Exchange Money Market - - - - - -
43 Funds Provided Under Repurchase Apreemenis 4 10,010 - 10,010 = . -
V. MARKETABLE SECURITIES ISSUED (Net) (5} - o - - - - -
51 Bills - - - - - - -
52 Assel Backed Sccurilics - - - - - - -
53 Bonds - . N N = B |
V1. FUNDS 136 3 167 49 10,223 10,272
6.1 Botrower Funds o {6) 136 K} 167 49 10,223 10,272
| 62 Other - B by hd B -
VIL, MISCELLANEOUS PAYABLES » - 39 100 - 100
VIIL OTHER LIABILITIES (7) 7517 74 7,591 5,292 6] 5,338
X, FACTORING PAYABLES - - - - - -
X. LEASE PAYABLES (Net) @) ) ) ) B 3 )
10.1 Financial Lease Payables - - - . g K
102 Operational Lease Pavables - - - - - -
T103 | Other = B E— . : - :
10.4 Deferred Financial Lease Exg (=) - - - - - -
XL HEDGING DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 9 - - - g _— |
11.1 Fair Value Hedge - - - - - -
12 Cash Flow Hedpe - - - . = E
1.3 Foreign Net Investment Hedge - - - - - -
XIL PROVISIONS {10) 4,696 - 4,696 4,302 - 4,302
12.F General Loan Loss Provision 3513 - 3513 2670 B 2670
122 Restructuring Provisions ) - - - - S -
123 | Reserve for Employee Rights o 273 - m 99 - 299
124 Insurance Technical Provisions (Net) n - - - - - -
12.5 Other Provisions 910 - g1 1,333 = 1.333
XL TAX LIABILITY {11) 1,463 - 1,463 482 ER 482
| 131 Current Tax Liability - 1,463 o 1.463 482 . 482
132 Delerred Tax Liability - - - - - -
XIv. PAYABLES FOR ASSET HELD FOR RESALE AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (12) - - - - = -
141 Held for Resale o - - - - - -
142 Discontinued Operations - - - - - - -
NV, SUBORDINATED LOANS (13) - - G - - -
XV SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (14) 237,259 - 231189 230,552 - 230,552
16.1 Paid-in Capnial 255.000 . 255000 255,000 - 255,000
16.2 Capual Reserves - (B) - (8) {90) - (90}
1621 | Share Premium - - . . s K
1622 | Share Cancellation Profits - . - . - R
1623 Marketable Securilics Valuation Reserve 8 - {8) (90) - {90}
16.2.4 Tangible Assets Revaluation Reserve - - - - - -
162.5 Intangible Asscts Revaluation Reserve - - . - - -
1626 | Investment Property Revaluation Reserve - - - - - -
1627 Bonus Shares Obtained from Investments mn Associales,
Subsidiarics and Joint Ventures o - - - . N B
1618 Hedping Reserves (Effective portion) - - - B g B
1629 Value Differences of Assets Held for Resale and Discontinued
Openations . - - - - -
1621
0 Other Capital Reserves . - - - - "
163 Profit Reserves 324 - 324 324 - 3
16.3 1 Legal Reserves Py - 29 29 - 29
1632 Stalus Reserves 195 - 295 295 - 295
1633 Extraordinary Reserves . - - - - -
i6.3.4 Other Profit Reserves - - - - - -
LX) Income or (Loss) (18.057) . (18,057} 124,682} - (24.682)
164.1 Prior Years® Income/ (Loss) (24,682) - (24,682) (33,469) - (33,469}
1642 Current Year Income/ {Loss) 6,625 - 6,625 8,787 . 8.787
TOTAL LIABILITIES 285,127 114,108 399,235 240,797 81,608 322405

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
IN TURKISH, SEE NOTE I OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.S.

UNCONSOLIDATED OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS

AT 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise stated.)

Il.  OFF-BALANCE SHEET

Current Year

OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS

Note

Prior Period

30 June 2016

31 December 2015

(Section
Five-111}

L,

Tutal |

TL

FC

A OFEBALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS (TFTi+1il)

9551131

B
LT

159.5

I. GUARANTEES AND WARRANTI

[1)]

89,108

e
ps
B

146,234

106,131

111,026

59,665

67,330

1T Lenters ol G

5,103

133,399

Guarantees Subjeci 1o Staie Tender Law

39.663

PN EL]

8.634

St} 3] i

Guarantees Given for Foreign Trade Operations
Other Letters of Guarantee

89,163

113,843

59,665

Bank Accepianices
Imtﬁo“ Leiter of Accepiance

(e

Other Bank Acceptances

tiers of Credit

13,125

ocumentary _Letiers of Credit

13,7353

P

iher Létiers of Credit

Brefinancing Given as Guamnice

Endorsemens to the Ceniral Bank of the Hepublicof Turkey

(B

Other Endorsements

Secunties [ssue Furchase Guarantees

Factoring Cruarantees

adefefn|niede|nfats

er ruarantees

O Ot~ G L U L ] Lo e 4 0 000 1

Other Collaicials

COMMITMENTS

10,509

Imevocable C

11,509

Assct Purchase and Sales Commiiments

470

Deposit Furchase and Sales Commitmenis

3009

aqwdj~Bmbpdaiadefefofadnn

Share Capiial Commitments to Associates and Subsidianes

for Loan Limats

plafasalieafe|odadada]afa

Bl

5 tics Issue

dEd e

age Commitients
Commitments for Heserve Deposit Kequireiments

vionga|vfafrmad Tl e fugafute|nbn|ofo]nts

Commilments for C ieques

"Tax and Tund Liabsl from Expest Commitments

C Tor Crednt Card Limats

el adaly

D] 0L b R b 6l 1 0] 0 ] 0] 0] ] e ] ] ] ] ] et ] ] ] ] ] ] ]

[ Commitments for Credit Cards and Banking Scrvices
ccervables Trom Short Sale Cammitmenis of Mu[‘e!alﬁlc Securiiies

i o] ek O ] N LA | L] |

ayables for Shori Sale Commitments of Markelable Securttics

por b et =

Oiher Tmevocable C

Revocable Commitments

Revoeable Commitments Jor Toan Limiis

1 —

Other Revocable Commiiments ]
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTHRUMENTS

{2)

dmiv o falubadsfola|tny

e
N
)

ivdafojofuin|ndetue]ofogofata]afafobedvteiatadn]ate

|~
=

sjefelufu

3898733

=

Hedging Devative Financial fnstruiments

vansactions for Fair Value Hedpe

R R i — PO P

e b

mansaciions for Cash Flow Hedpe

ransaclians for Foreign et In Hedpe

Trading Denvanve Financial Instruments

6,924

‘orward Forcign Cumency Buy/Sell Tiansactions
orward Foreign Currency lmnsacuons-ﬁu{

o —

I e
onvard Forelen L ummency | ransaciionsg->e!

%
[ A .

Swap Transactions Helated 1o Foreign Currency and Interesi Rates

6,924

13,34

6,034

Fareign Currency Swap-Buy

[

o] Lod ] e

Foreign Currency Swap-Sell
Tnterest Kate Swap-Huy
Tricrest Kate §

0
6,933
6

te Swap-Sell

Foreign Cumrency, 1 rate and Securities Options

Blagrpege]eibiibd g fnini=dly Jufnin

Foreipn Cumrency Options-Buy
Foreign Currency Options-Sell

Inicrest Kate Upuions-Buy

Interesi Rate Options-Sell

N L da] Leof £ i

Secuniies Opuons-_sByﬁ

Sceuritics Options-Se
Foreipn Cuttency Futures

Foreign Currency Fuiures-Buy

[

Fereign Currency Futures-Sell

Interest Hate Futures

Inierest Rate Futures-Buy

8 =]

Interest Kate Futures-Sefl

o g L L ] ] e L ] L ] e G0 1 12

sfadoedefubelaledataga|oin]ads

efudafade|ufu]afa

nuuuuuuuuumuuuuuwuuu\.-u!uuuu'uu—uu- (1
1 rabnainaie N

M N RN IR R I N R T )

cr e .
CUSTODY AND FLEDGES RECEIVED (IVEVEVT)

88,7

G7.868

91,8

—

oA TEMS HELDIN CUSTODY

933

T Customer Fund and Portiolio Balances

JE

17 Investinent Sccuniies Held in Custody

EX] Cheques Keceived Tor Collection

9%

LR Commercial Notes Received Tor Collection

EE] Other Assets Received for Callection

6 Assets Received Tor Public Offering

1o
R
Jedo |2

plo|anfatomnis

-
455
=

ER Onher liems Under Custody’

gasAnansacaAnnnn

Dobefedelalobeefef@lalefe ] baie]s

C
PLEDGES RECEIVED

6618

[atketable Securitics

107,572

43,373

96,913

102,979

5346

94,334

]
b1 Guasanice Noies
3

3593

2619

33 Tmmovable

-

3% Other Fledyed Tiems
3T Pledeed liems-Depasitary

20,172

40,202

3239]

Vi, ACCEFTED INDEPENDENT CUARANTEES AND WARRANTIES
TOTAL OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS {A¥B)

30
205,836

152,923

358,161

203,999

202,435

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED

IN TURKISH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE
PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.S.

UNCONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

AT 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated. )

IIL STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
Current Year Prior Period Current Year Prior Period
INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS Note
(Section 1 January - 1 January - 1 April - 1 April -
Five-1V) 30 June 2016 30 June 201§ 30 June 2016 3 June 2015
1. INTEREST INCOME (1) 17,357 11,651 8,727 6,275
1.1 Interest on Loans 15,467 5,700 7,841 3.7
12 Intesest Received from Reserve Requirements . X - 19 -
13 Interest Received from Banks 937 4490 501 2,107
14 Interest Recerved from Money Market Transactions 23 540 4 222
RED Enterest Recerved from Marketable Securilies Portfolio 867 921 362 225
1.5 Trading Financial Assets - - - -
152 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss - - - .
1.53 Available-for-sale Financial Assets o 867 p2]] 362 15
154 Held-to-maturity lnvestmenis - - - -
16 Financial Lease Income - . - -
17 Other [nterest Income - - - .
1l. INTEREST EXPENSE (-) @) 2,138) (364 {1,004) (158)
21 Interest on Deposits (=) - - - -
2.2 intercst on Funds Borrowed (-} (1477 (180) (794) {114)
23 Interest Expense on Monecy Market Transactions (-) @y (62 [edl)) (13
24 Interest on Securities Issued {-) - - - -
25 Other Inlerest Expenses (-) (12) (263) (122) - {3}
1. NET INTEREST INCOMIE (I + 1) 15219 11,287 7,723 6,117
V. NET FEES AND COMMISSIONS INCOME/EXPENSE 571 30 30 14
41 Fees and Comitnissions Received 660 i) 356 42
411 Non-cash Loans 554 39 341 23
112 Other {13} 106 35 15 19
4. Fees and Commussions Paid (-} (&l (44) (46) (28)
421 Non-cash Loans («) - - - -
KE¥] Other (-} (i2) {89) @ (16 (28)
V. DIVIDEND INCOME 3) . - - -
VL TRADING INCOME/( LOSS) {Net) (L)) 897 {7) 510 154
6.1 Trading Gains/{Losses) on Securilics 17 (464) 17 -
6.2 Trading Gains/(Losses) on Derivative Financial Instruments 903 (302) 350 (302)
63 Foreipn Exchange Gains/{Losses) (23) 759 153 456
VIl OTHER OPERATING INCOME {5) 114 58 (3) 56
VIIL TOTAL OPERATING INCOME (IH+IV+V+VI+VII) 16,801 11,368 8,550 6,341
IX. PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES () (6) (843) (842} (403} (354)
X. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (-) %) (7.368) 3.749) @3,921) (3,092)
Xl NET OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) (VIIT+IX+X) 5490 47717 4126 2,895,
NI EXCESS AMOUNT RECORDED AS INCOME AFTER
MERGER S| EA T TS " 5
XIIL INCOME(LOSS) FROM INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATEDR BASED ON EQUITY METHOD - - - .
XIV. INCOME/LOSS) ON NET MONETARY POSITION - - - -
AV, INCOMEfLOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS (XI+...+X1V) o {8) 8,490 4,1 4,226 1,898
XVI, TAN PROVISION FOR CONTINUING OFPERATIONS () (9) {1,865) (1,135) (967) (650)
16.] Current Tax Provision {1,558) - (.07 -
i62 Deflerred Tax Provision (307) (1.135) 1140 (650)
NET INCOMEXLOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
XV AV-XVI) ~ (10 6,625 3,642 3,259 2,245
XVIIL NCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - - - -
18.1 Income from Non-Cument Assets Held for Resale - * -
182 Sale Income from Associates, Subsidianies and Joint Ventures - - -
183 Other Income from Discontinued Qperitions - - BCH
XIX. EXPENSES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (-) - - - -
91 Expense from Non-Curreni Asseis Held for Resale - " i a
9.2 Sale Losses from Assoctales, Subsidianies and Joint Ventures - - - =
93 Other Expenses from Discontinued Operations -l - - -
XX, INCONME/{LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS (XVIN-XIX) 8} - - - -
XX TAX PROVISION FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (-) 9} - - - -
211 Curtent tax provision - - - -
21.2 Deferred tax provision - = - -
XXIL NET INCOME/(LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS (XX-XXI) [1L0)] s - - -
XXIIL NET INCOME/(L.OSS) (XVII+XX1]) [L}] 6,625 3,642 3,259 2,245
Eaminps/{Loss) per share 0 0360 0.0143 00128 0.0008

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
IN TURKISH, SEE NOTE I OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.S.
UNCONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS ACCOUNTED IN EQUITY AT
30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts are exptessed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)

v,

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS ACCOUNTED IN EQUITY

Current Year

Prior Period

30 June 2016

30 June 2015

INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS ACCOUNTED IN EQUITY

I

[APDITIONS TQ THE MARKETABLE SECURITIES VALUATION RESERVE FROM THE AVAILABLE
FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

130

{129)

REVALUATION DIFFERENCES OF TANGIBLE ASSETS

REVALUATION DIFFERENCES OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

[y,

FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSLATION DIFFERENCES FOR FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

INCOME/LOSS ON CASH FLOW HEDGE DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Effective Part of Fair
Value Changes)

V1.

IPROFIT/LOSS FROM FOREIGN INVESTMENT HEDGE DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Effective
Part of Fair Value Changes)

VL.

EFFECTS OF CHIANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND ERRORS

VIIL.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS ACCOUNTED IN EQUITY ACCORDING TO TAS

1X.

DEFERRED TAX ON VALUATION BIFFERENCES

(48)

26

N,

NET INCOME/LOSS ACCOUNTED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY (1+11+...41X)

82

(103}

X1

CURRENT PERIOD INCOME/LOSS

6,615

3.642

MNet Chanpe in Fair Value of Marketable Securities { Transler to [ncome Slalement)

11.2

Portion of Cash Flow Hedpe Derivative Financial Assets Reclassified and Presented on the Income Statement

113

Portion of Foreign Investment Hedge Derivative Financial Assets Reclassified and Presented on the Income
tatement

114

Other R

6.625

3.642

NIL

TAOTAL INCOME/LOSS RELATED TO THE CURRENT PERIOD (X+XI)

6,707

3.539

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED

IN TURKISH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.S.

NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

AT 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)

V1. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Current Year Prior Period
Note (Section

Five-VI) 30 June 2016 30 June 2015

Al CASH FLOWS FROM BANKING OPERATIONS
1.1 Operating Profit Before Chanpes in Operating Assets and Linbilities 6,629 3721
AN nterest Received 15,205 9,106
112 merest Paid {1,033) (240
113 Dividend Received - =
1.1.4 Fees and Commissions Received 654 85
1.1.5 Other Income 1,253 (642)
I1.1.6 Collections from Previously Written-off Loans and Other Receivables - -
1.1.7 Payments to Personne] and Service Suppliers (3.215) (2.686)
1.18 Taxes Paid - -
1.19 | Other 2) (6.323) {1.903)
12 Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities (15.855) (80,884)
121 Nei (Increase)Tecrease in Trading Securitics 1156)
122 Net (Inerease)yDecrease in Fair Value Through ProfivLess Financial Assets 148 -
123 Net (Inerease ) Decrease in Due from Banks (2.827) (2.819)
124 Net (IncreaseyDiecrease in Loans {79.260) (102.633)
125 Net (Increase)Decrease in Other Assets i) 4,182 2,604
2.6 Net Increase/( Decrease) in Bank Deposits - 5
27 Net Increase/( Decrease) in Other Deposits - ¥
28 Net Increase/( Decrease) in Funds Borrowed 65,597 25,098
29 Net Increase/( Decrease) tn Payables B 5
12.10 Net Inctease/( Deerease) in Other Liabilnies {2) {3.695) (2.968)
L Net Cash Provided frem Banking Opcrations (9,226) (77.163)

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Il. Net Cash Provided from Investing Activities (6,731) {4,661}
21 Cash Paid for Acqmsition of Investments, Associales and Subsidiaries - -
21 Cash Obtained from Disposal of Investments. Associales and Subsidiarics - -
23 Purchases of Property and Equipment (554) (255)
24 Disposals of Property and Equipment - -
25 Cash Paid for Purchase of lnvestments Available-for-Sale (8373} (5.599)
26 Cash Obtained from Sale of Investments Available-for-Sate 2.196 1,193
21 Cash Paid for Purchase of Investment Securilies - -

28 Cash Obtained from Salc of Investment Securities -
19 Other -

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
111, Net Cash Provided from Financing Activities - 174,932
31 Cash Obtained from Funds Borrowed and Securities [ssued - -
2 Cash Used for Repayment of Funds Bomrowed and Secunities Jssued - .
33 Issued Capital Instruments - 175,012
34 Dividends Paid - -
35 Paymemts for Finance Leases - (80)
16 Other - -
Iv. Effect of Change in Foreign Eschange Rate on Cosh and Cash Equivalents {2) 242) 746
V. Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (I+11+111+1V) (16.199) 93,854
Y1, Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period [U) 48,248 1,231
VIL Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period (V+VI) {n 32,049 95,085

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
IN TURKISH, SEE NOTE I OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated,)

SECTION THREE
EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES
L BASIS OF PRESENTATION

a. The unconsolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the “Regulation on
the Principles and Procedures Regarding Banks’ Accounting Applications and Safeguarding
of Documents*’:

The unconsolidated financial statements are prepared within the scope of the “Regulation on Accounting
Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents” related with Banking Act numbered 5411
published in the Official Gazette no0.26333 dated 1 November 2006 and in accordance with the
regulations, communiqués, interpretations and legislations related to accounting and financial reporting
principles published by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA™), and in case where a
specific regulation is not made by BRSA, “Turkish Accounting Standards” (*TAS”) and “Turkish
Financial Reporting Standards” (“TFRS"} and related appendices and interpretations put into effect by
Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA™). The format and content of the
publicly announced unconsolidated financial statements and notes to these statements have been prepared
in accordance with the “Communiqué on Publicly Announced Financial Statements, Explanations and
Notes to These Financial Statements” and “Communiqué On Disclosures About Risk Management To Be
Announced To Public By Banks”and amendments to this Communiqué. The Bank maintains its books in
Turkish Lira in accordance with the Banking Act, Turkish Commercial Code and Turkish Tax Legislation.

The unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in TL, under the historical cost convention
except for the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value.

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with TAS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates by the Bank management to exercise its judgment on the assets and liabilities
of the balance sheet and contingent issues as of the balance sheet date. These estimates, which include the
fair value calculations of financial instruments and impairments of financial assets are being reviewed
regularly and, when necessary, suitable corrections are made and the effects of these corrections are
reflected to the income statement. Assumptions and estimates that are used in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements are explained in the following related disclosures.

The amendments of TAS and TFRS, effectiveness date is | January 2016, have no material impact on the
Bank’s accounting policies, financial position and performance. The amendments of TAS and TFRS,
except TFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2011 Version) will have no impact on the accounting policies,
financial condition and performance of the Bank. The Bank assesses the impact of TFRS 9 Financial
Instruments standard.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IL

b. The accounting policies and valuation principles applied in the preparation of these financial
statements and valuation principles:

The accounting policies and valuation principles applied in the preparation of unconsolidated financial
statements, are determined and applied in accordance with regulations, communiqués, explanations and
circulars on accounting and financial reporting principles published by the BRSA, and in case where there
is no special regulation made by the BRSA, in accordance with principles in the context of TAS and
TFRS, are consistent with the accounting policies applied in the annual financial statements of the year
ended 31 December 2015. Aforementioned accounting policies and valuation principles are explained in
below.

c. Explanation for convenience translation into English:

The effects of differences between accounting principles and standards set out by regulations in conformity with
BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation) and Turkish Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting™
except for the matters regulated by BRSA Legislation, accounting principles generally accepted in countries in
which the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements are to be distributed and International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) have not been quantified in the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial
position, results of operations and changes in financial position and cash flows in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in such countries and IFRS.

EXPLANATIONS ON STRATEGY OF USING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FOREIGN
CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

The general strategy of the Bank of using financial instruments is to sustain an optimal balance between
the yield of the instruments and their risks. The most important funding source of the Bank is internal
funding, in addition external funding including funding from repo transactions and borrowing from
foreign financial institutions is utilised. Funds obtained from internal and external sources are invested in
high yield and quality financial assets and currency, interest rate and liquidity risks are being kept within
the limits following the asset-liability management strategy. The currency, interest and liquidity risks of
on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet assets and liabilities are managed in accordance with the risk limits
accepted by the Bank and the related legal limits. Derivative instruments are mainly utilised for liquidity
needs and for mitigating currency and interest rate risks. The position of the Bank as a result of foreign
currency activities being held at minimum levels and the exposed currency risk is followed within the
determined levels by the Board of Directors by considering the limits given by the Banking Law.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated with the Bank’s foreign
currency bid rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising from such valuations are
recognised in the income statement under the account of “Foreign exchange gains or losses”.
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NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 JUNE 2016
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

118

V.

EXPLANATIONS ON FORWARD TRANSACTIONS, OPTIONS AND DERIVATIVE
INSTRUMENTS

The Bank does not have any embedded derivative instruments.

Derivative instruments are classified either as “Hedging Derivative Financial Instruments” or “Trading
Derivative Financial Instruments” in accordance with the “Turkish Accounting Standard for Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (“TAS 397)”. Certain derivative transactions, even though
they provide effective economic hedges under the Bank’s risk management position, do not qualify for
hedge accounting under the specific rules in TAS 39 and are therefore treated as “Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss™.

Derivative instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition and subsequently remeasured at
their fair values. If the fair value of derivative financial instruments is positive, it is disclosed under the
main account “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” in “Trading derivative financial
instruments” and if the fair value difference is negative, it is disclosed under “Trading derivative financial
liabilities”. The fair values of the derivative financial instruments are calculated by using quoted market
prices or by using discounted cash flow models. Liabilities and receivables arising from the derivative
instruments are followed in the off-balance sheet accounts from their contractual values.

EXPLANATIONS ON INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

Interest income and expenses are recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis, The Bank ceases
accruing interest income on non-performing loans and, any interest income accruals from such loans are
being reversed and no income is accounted until the collection is made. Only cash collections regarding
non-performing loans are recorded as interest income.

EXPLANATIONS ON FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE

All fees and commissions income/expenses are recognised on an accrual basis, except for certain
commission income and fees from various banking services which are recorded as income at the time of
collection.

Fees and commissions expenses paid to the other institutions regarding financial liabilities are considered
a component of interest expense of the related funding and are recognised as transaction costs and
recorded as expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Contract-based fees or fees received in return for services such as the purchase and sale of assets on behalf
of a third or legal person are recognised as income at the time of collection.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

V1. EXPLANATIONS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Bank classifies and accounts its financial assets as “Fair value through profit or loss”, “Available-
for-sale”, “Loans and receivables” or “Held-to-maturity”. Sales and purchases of the financial assets
mentioned above are recognised at the “settlement dates™. The appropriate classification of financial
assets of the Bank is determined at the time of purchase by the Bank management, taking into
consideration the purpose of holding the investment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial assets are classified either as “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” or
“Trading financial assets™.

Trading financial assets are either acquired for generating profit from short-term fluctuations in the
price or dealer’s margin, or are the financial assets included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-
term profit making exists independent from the acquisition purpose.

Sales and purchases of trading financial assets are recognised at the “settlement dates”. Trading
financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transactions costs and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. All gains and losses arising from these evaluations are recognised in
the income statement. Interest earned while holding financial assets is reported as interest income
and dividends received are included separately in dividend income.

Derivative financial instruments are treated as trading financial assets unless they are not designated
as hedge instruments. The principles regarding the accounting of derivative financial instruments are
explained in detail in related section.

Available-for-sale financial assets:

Available-for-sale financial assets are defined as financial assets other than the ones classified as
*Loans and receivables”, “Held-to-maturity assets™ or “Financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss™,

Government bonds included in the available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. “Unrealised gains and losses” arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in the shareholders’ equity as “Marketable Securities
Valuation Reserve”, until there is a permanent decline in the fair values of such assets or they are
disposed of. When these financial assets are disposed of or impaired, the related fair value differences
accumulated in the shareholders’ equity are transferred to the income statement.

Available-for-sale equity securities that have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair values can be reliably measured are carried at fair value. Available-for-sale equity securities that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliably
measured are carried at cost, less provision for impairment.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
¢. Loans and receivables:

Loans and receivables are financial assets which are created by providing money, services or goods
to a debtor. Loans and receivables originated by the Bank are carried initially at cost and subsequently
recognised at the amortised cost value calculated using the effective interest method. The expenses
incurred for the assets received as collateral are not considered as transaction costs and are recognised
in the expense accounts.

The Bank provides general and specific provisions based on the assessments and estimates of the
management, by considering the “Communiqué Related to Principles and Procedures on Determining
the Qualifications of Banks’ Loans and Other Receivables and the Provision for These Loans and
Other Receivables” published in the Official Gazette No. 26333 dated 1 November 2006. Apart from
specific provisions, the Bank has general loan loss provision within the scope of the stated
regulations.

VII. EXPLANATIONS ON IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Bank assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. Where the estimated recoverable amount of the financial asset,
being the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted based on the effective interest
method, or the fair value if one exists is lower than its carrying value, then it is concluded that the asset
under consideration is impaired. A provision is made for the diminution in value of the impaired financial
asset and it is charged against the income for the year.

VII.EXPLANATIONS ON OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when the
Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
collect/pay related financial assets and liabilities on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

IX. EXPLANATIONS ON SALES AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS AND SECURITIES
LENDING TRANSACTIONS

Securities subject to repurchase agreements (“Repo”™) are classified as “Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss”, “Available-for-sale™ and “Held-to-maturity” according to the investment purposes
of the Bank and measured according to the portfolio to which they belong. Funds obtained from
repurchase agreements are accounted under “Funds Provided under Repurchase Agreements” in liabilities
and the difference between the sale and repurchase price is accrued over the life of repurchase agreements
using the effective interest method.

Funds given against securities purchased under agreements (“Reverse repo”) to resell are accounted under
“Receivables from Reverse Repurchase Agreements” on the balance sheet. The difference between the
purchase and determined resell price is accrued over the life of repurchase agreements using the “effective
interest method”.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

X.

XL

EXPLANATIONS ON ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE AND FIXED ASSETS FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND LIABILITIES RELATED WITH THESE ASSETS

According to TFRS 5, non-current asset classified as held for sale (or group of assets to be disposed) is
measured by the lowest of book value or sales costs discounted fair value. An asset to be held for sale
asset (or group of assets to be disposed) it is necessary that, the related asset has to be commonly seen on
the sales of these kind of sales assets, it could be easily immediately sold in the frame of usual conditions
and it has to have high sales probability. For the high sales probability, there has to be a plan regarding
the sales of asset made by the appropriate management level and by the determination of buyers there has
to be an active program started regarding to completion of the plan.

Assets held-for-resale consist of tangible assets that were acquired due to non-performing receivables,
and are accounted in the financial statements in accordance with the “Communiqué Regarding the
Principles and Procedures for the Disposals of Immovable and Commodities Acquired due to Receivabies
and for Trading of Precious Metal” published in the Official Gazette dated
I November 2006, No. 26333.

A discontinued operation is a part classified as discarded or held for sales by the bank. Results regarding
to discontinue operations are presented individually in income statement.

The Bank has no discontinued operations.
EXPLANATIONS ON GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are measured at cost on initial recognition and any directly attributable costs of setting
the asset to work for its intended use are included in the initial measurement. Subsequently, intangible
assets are carried at historical costs after the deduction of accumulated amortization and the provision for
value decreases, if any.

Intangibles are amortised over their estimated useful lives of three to five years using the straight-line
method. The useful life of the asset is determined by assessing the expected useful life of the asset,
technical, technological and other kinds of obsolescence and all required maintenance expenses necessary
to utilise the economic benefit of the assets.

The Bank expects no change with respect to accounting estimates, amortization period, amortization
method, or residual value that will have significant impact on the current or the following periods.

Computer software development expenses that add to the economic benefit and extend the useful life of
the software are capitalised. These expenses are amortised over the remaining useful life of the related
intangible asset using “the straight-line method™.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
XII. EXPLANATIONS ON PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment is measured at its cost when initially recognised and any directly attributable
costs of setting the asset in working order for its intended use are included in the initial measurement.
Subsequently, property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for
value decrease, if any. Depreciation is calculated over the cost of property and equipment using the
straight-line method. The depreciation rates are stated below:

Office machine, furniture, leasehold improvements and vehicles 3-10 years

The depreciation charge for items remaining in property and equipment for less than an accounting period
at the balance sheet date is calculated in proportion to the period the item remained in property and
equipment.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated “recoverable amount”, it is written
down immediately to its “recoverable amount” and the provision for the diminution in value is charged
to the income statement.

Property and equipment are not subject to valuation such that fair value is presented in the financial
statements.

Gains and losses on the disposal of property and equipment are determined by deducting the net book
value of the property and equipment from its sales revenue.

Expenditures for the regular repair and maintenance of property and equipment are recognised as expense.
The capital expenditures made in order to increase the capacity of the tangible asset or to increase its
future benefits are capitalised on the cost of the tangible asset. The capital expenditures include the cost
components which are used either to increase the useful life or the capacity of the asset, or the quality of
the product or to decrease the costs.

There is no pledge, mortgage or commitment on the Bank’s property and equipments,

The Bank expects no change with respect to accounting estimates that have significant impact on the
current period or may have significant impact on the following periods.

XIILEXPLANATIONS ON LEASING TRANSACTIONS

Assets acquired under finance lease agreements are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the “lower
of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the amount of cash consideration given for the
leased asset”. Leased assets are included in the property and equipment and depreciation is charged on a
straight-line basis over the useful life of these assets. [f there is any diminution in value of the leased asset,
a “Provision for value decrease” is recognised. Liabilities arising from the leasing transactions are
included in “Financial Lease Payables” on the balance sheet. Interest and foreign exchange expenses
regarding lease transactions are charged to the income statement,

Operating Lease

Leases, in which the majority of risk and return of property belongs to lessor, are classified as operational
lease. Payments that are made under operational leases, are accounted in income statements on a straight
line basis during the lease period.
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XIV.EXPLANATIONS ON PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS

XV.

Provisions and contingent liabilities except for the financial instruments within the scope of the TAS 39
or the provisions recognised in accordance with the TAS 12 and TAS 19 are accounted in accordance
with the “Turkish Accounting Standard for Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
(“TAS 377).

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. The provision for
contingent liabilities arising from past events should be recognised in the same period of occurrence in
accordance with the “Matching principle”. When the amount of the obligation cannot be estimated and
there is no possibility of an outflow of resources from the Bank, it is considered that a “Contingent”
liability exists and it is disclosed in the related notes to the financial statements.

EXPLANATIONS ON OBLIGATIONS RELATED TO EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

Obligations related to employee termination and vacation rights are accounted for in accordance with
“Turkish Accounting Standard for Employee Rights” (“TAS 19”) and are classified under “Reserve for
Employee Rights” account in the balance sheet. Under the Turkish Labour Law, the Bank is required to
pay a specific amount to the employees who have retired or whose employment is terminated other than
the reasons specified in the Turkish Labour Law. The reserve for employment termination benefits
represents the present value of the estimated total reserve for the future probable obligation of the Bank
arising from this liability.

According to TAS 19 that is revised by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority
with the Communique published in Official Gazette on 12 March 2013 numbered 28585, in the calculation
of the employment termination benefit liabilities of the Bank, the recognition option of the actuarial gains
and losses derived from the changes in actuarial assumptions or the differences between actuarial
assumptions and realizations in the income statement has been eliminated which is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after | January 2013. The earlier application of the revision is permitted in the
section of the transition and effective date of the standard and therefore the Bank has recognised the
actuarial gains and losses that occur in related reporting periods in the “Statement of Income and Expense
Items Accounted in Equity” and represented in the Prior Periods’ Income/ (Loss) item in the Shareholders
Equity section.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

XVIL. EXPLANATIONS ON TAXATION

a.

Current Tax:

Many clauses of Corporate Tax Law No. 5520 (“Tax Law™) which are valid starting from
1 January 2006, were taken into effect after being published in the Official Gazette dated
2] September 2006 No. 26205. According to the Tax Law, the corporate tax rate in Turkey is payable
at the rate of 20% since 1 January 2006. The corporate tax rate is calculated on the total income of
the Bank after adjusting for certain disallowable expenses, exempt income (such as capital gains
derived from the sale of equity investments) and other allowances. No further tax is payable unless
the profit is distributed.

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations, which have a place of business in Turkey or to resident
corporations are not subject to withholding tax. Otherwise, dividends paid are subject to withholding
tax at the rate of 15%. An increase in capital via issuing bonus shares is not considered as profit
distribution and thus does not incur withholding tax.

Corporations are required to pay advance corporate tax quarterly at a rate of 20% on their corporate
income. Advance tax is declared by the 14th and paid by the 17th day of the second month following
each calendar quarter end. Advance tax paid by corporations which is for the current period is
credited against the annual corporation tax calculated on their annual corporate income in the
following year. Despite the offset, if there is temporary prepaid tax remaining, this balance can be
refunded or used to offset any other financial liabilities to the government,

A 75% portion of the capital gains derived from the sale of equity investments and immovable
properties held for at least two years is tax exempt, if such gains are added to paid-in capital or held
in a special account under shareholder’s equity for five years.

Under the Turkish Corporate Tax Law, losses can be carried forward to offset against future taxable
income for up to five years. Losses cannot be carried back to offset profits from previous periods.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Tax returns
are required to be filled and delivered to the related tax office until the evening of the 25th of the
fourth month following the balance sheet date. Tax returns are open for five years from the beginning
of the year following the date of filing during which period the tax authorities have the right to audit
tax returns, and the related accounting records on which they are based, and may issue re-assessments
based on their findings.

Deferred Tax:

The Bank calculates and accounts for deferred income taxes for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in these financial statements
in accordance with “Turkish Accounting Standard for Income Taxes” (“TAS 127). In the deferred
tax calculation, the enacted tax rate, in accordance with the tax legislation, is used as of the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all resulting temporary differences whereas deferred tax
assets resulting from temporary differences are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

The calculated deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability are presented as net in these financial
statements.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
¢. Transfer Pricing:

The article 13 of the Corporate Tax Law describes the issue of transfer pricing under the title
of“Disguised profit distribution” by way of transfer pricing. “The General Communiqué on
DisguisedProfit Distribution by Way of Transfer Pricing” explains the application related issues on
this matter.

According to this Communiqué The Bank is required to fill out Transfer Pricing form, if the taxpayers
conduct transactions like purchase and sale of goods or services with the related parties as well as
the methodology of the transfer pricing.

XVI1l. EXPLANATIONS ON BORROWINGS

Trading and derivative financial liabilities are valued with their fair values and the other financial
liabilities are carried at “amortised cost™ using the effective interest method.

The Bank utilises various hedging techniques to minimise the currency, interest rate and liquidity risks of
its financial liabilities.

XVIII. EXPLANATIONS ON ISSUANCE OF SHARES CERTIFICATES

Transaction costs regarding the issuance of share certificates are accounted under shareholders’ equity
after eliminating the tax effects. Dividend payments are determined by the General Assembly of Bank.

The Bank has not issued any share certificates.

No dividend payments were announced after the balance sheet date.

XIX.EXPLANATIONS ON AVALIZED DRAFTS AND ACCEPTANCES

Avalized drafts and acceptances shown as liabilities against assets are included in the “Off-balance sheet
commitments”. The Bank has no avalized drafts and acceptances shown as liabilities against assets.

XX. EXPLANATIONS ON GOVERNMENT GRANTS
As of 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Bank has no government grants.
XXIL. EXPLANATIONS ON PROFIT RESERVES AND PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

Retained eamings as per the statutory financial statements other than legal reserves are available for
distribution, subject to the legal reserve requirement referred to below. Under the Turkish Commercial
Code (*TCC”) the legal reserves are composed of first and second reserves. The TCC requires first
reserves 10 be 5% of the profit until the total reserve is equal to 20% of issued and fully paid-in share
capital. Second reserves are required to be 10% of all cash profit distributions that are in excess of 5% of
the issued and fully paid-in share capital. However holding companies are exempt from this application.
According to the Turkish Commercial Code, legal reserves can only be used to compensate accumulated
losses and cannot be used for other purposes unless they exceed 50% of paid-in capital.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
XXII. EXPLANATIONS ON EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit for the year to the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period concerned. Earnings per share disclosed in the income statement are
calculated by dividing net profit for the year to the weighted average capital outstanding during the period
concerned.

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares (“bonus
shares”) to existing shareholders from retained earnings. For the purpose of earnings per share
computations, the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year has been adjusted in
respect to bonus shares issued without a corresponding change in resources by giving them a retroactive
effect for the year in which they were issued and for each earlier period. Where the number of outstanding
shares increase due to distribution of bonus shares after the balance sheet date but before the release of
the financial statements, earnings per share computations are performed based on the revised average
number of shares.

XXIII. EXPLANATIONS ON RELATED PARTIES

Parties defined in Article 49 of the Banking Law No.5411, Bank’s senior management and Board
Members are deemed as related parties. Transactions regarding related parties are presented in Section
Five.

XXIV. EXPLANATIONS ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the preparation of statement of cash flows, “Cash” includes cash, effectives, and cash
in transit, purchased cheques and demand deposits including balances with the Central Bank; and “Cash
equivalents” include interbank money market placements and time deposits at banks with original
maturity periods of less than three months.

XXV. EXPLANATIONS ON SEGMENT REPORTING
Information on operational fields which are determined in accordance with the Bank’s organisational and
internal reporting structure and the requirements of “Turkish Accounting Standards on Segment
Reporting” (“TAS 8”) is disclosed in Section Four.

XXVI. RECLASSIFICATIONS

In order to consistentwith the presentation of financial statements dated 30 June 2016, there are certain
reclassifications made on statement of income and expense items accounted in equity table.

XXVILEXPLANATIONS ON OTHER MATTERS

None.
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SECTION FOUR

INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK

MANAGEMENT

I INFORMATION ABOUT SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ITEMS

Equity Capital amount and capital adequacy standard ratio is calculated in accordance with the “Regulation on
Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks” and “Regulation on Equities of Banks”.

The current period equity amount of the Bank is TL 240,050 while its capital adequacy standard ratio is 66.49% as
of June 30, 2016. Calculations of December 31, 2015 have been made in the framework of repealed regulations and
equity amount is TL 232,480 while the capital adequacy standard ratio is 91.75%. The capital adequacy ratio of the

Bank is far beyond the minimum rate determined by the related legislation.

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments

Amount
Subject t]
Pre-Basel
)i
treatment;
Current; {Before the
Period| 1/1/2014) *
COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 CAPITAL
Paid-up Capital 255,000
Share issue premiums
Retained earnings 124
Accumulated other comprehensive income and other disclosed reserves which defined in the Turkish Accounting
Standards
Profit
Net profit of the period 6.625
Profit of the previous years
Shares acquired iree of charge from subsidiaries, affiliates and jointly controlled partnerships and cannot be recognised
[within profit for the period
Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments 261,946

Prudential valuation adjustments

The sum of the net loss for the current period and the previous years which could not be absorbed by the retained

earnings and losses recognised in equity in accordance with TAS

24,690
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Improvement costs for operating leasing

Goodwill {net of related tax liability)

Other intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights (net of refated tax liability)

419 588

Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary differences (net of related
tax liability)
Cash-flow hedge reserve
Shortfall of provisions to expected losses
Securitisation gain on sale
Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilities
Defined-benefit pension fund net assets
Investmenits in own shares !
Credits extended contrary to the fourth paragraph of Articles 56 of the Banking Law -
[investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entitics that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital|
{amount above 10% threshold) A
Significant investments in the common stock of banking, financial and insurance entitics that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold) -
Mortgage servicing rights (amount above 10% threshold)
Deferred tax assets arising from temporary difTerences (amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability)
Amount exceeding the 15% threshold (as set out in the paragraph 2 of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on
Banks® Own Funds)

of which: significant investiments in the common stock of financials

of which: mortgage servicing rights

of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences
National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the Board
Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 to coved
deductions
Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity Tier 1 VBT
Common Equity Tier I capital {CET1) T

ADDITIONAL TIER 1 CAPITAL

Preffered shares that are not included in Common Equity Tier 1 capital and related shares issue premiums

Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the Agency

Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the Agency (For the purposes off
[the Provisional Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks' Own Funds)
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

IAdditional Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments

Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments

Investments in own Additional Tier | instruments

Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1 instruments

Investments in the capital of banking. financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common share]
capital of the entity (amount above 10% threshold)

Significant invesimenis in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short positions)

National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the Board

Regulatory Adjustments which will be deducted from Tier 1 capital during the transition period

281

Goodwill and other intangible assets and related deferred tax liabilities which will not deducted from Common Eguity|
Tier 1 capital for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own
Funds (-)

280

Net deferred tax asset/liability which is not deducted from Common Eguity Tier | capital for the purposes of the sub-
aragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks® Own Funds (-)

Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions

Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital

Total Additional Tier 1 capital

Total Tier 1 capital {Tier 1 capital = Common Equity Tier ! capital + Additional Tier 1 capital)

236.537

TIER 2 CAPITAL

Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the Agency

Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the Agency (For the purposes of
the Provisional Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks® Own Funds)

Provisions

3513

Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments

3,513

Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments

Investments in own Tier 2 instruments

Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instruments

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory,
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common share;
capital of the entity (amount above the 10% threshold) (-)

Significant investments in the capital banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation (net of eligible short positions) (-)

National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the Board

Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Total Tier 2 capital

3513
Total Capital (The sum of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital) 220,080
The Sum of Tier 1 Capitat and Tier 2 Capital (Total Capital)
Credits extended contrary to the provisions of Articles 50 and 51 of the Banking Law |
PPortion of the sum of the banks’ real estate net book values, which is in excess of fifty per cent of their own funds and
et book values of those of merchandise and real estate which have to be acquired due to their receivables and disposed
of pursuant to Article 57 of the Banking Law, which cannot be disposed of despite the lapse of a period of five years
[since the date of such acquisition
National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the Board
Regulatory Adjustments which will be deducted from Total Capital during the transition period
Envestments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entitics that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible shon positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common share
capital of the entity (amount above the 10% threshold} which will not deducted from Common Eguity Tier | capital,
Additional Tier 1 capital, Tier 2 capital for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Anticle 2 of the
Regulation on Banks™ Own Funds (-) -
Significant investments in the Additional Tier 1 capiatl and Tier 2 capital of banking. {inancial and insurance entities]
hat are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation. net of eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold)
rwhich will not deducted from Common Eguity Tier 1 capital, Additional Tier 1 capital, Tier 2 capital for the purposes|
of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks” Own Funds (-) .
Significant investments in the common stock of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions(amount above 10% threshold), morigage servicing rights|
amount above 10% threshold), deferred tax assets arising from temporary difTerences (armount above 10% threshold,
mel of related tax liability) which will not deducted from Common Eguity Tier 1 capital for the purposes of the first
sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks™ Own Funds (-) :
OWN FUNDS
Total Capital (The sum of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital)
240,050|
Total Risk Weighted Assets
361,036
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS
Common Equity Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio {%0) 65597
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio (%
ier 1 Cap quacy Ratio (%) 65.52%
Capital Adequeacy Ratio (%
apita q v Ratio (%a) 66.49'4
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

BUFFERS

[nstitution specific buffer requirement lo.63%

of which: capital conservation buffer requirement (%) 3%

of which: bank specific countercyclical buffer requirement (%) |

The ratio of Additional Common Equity Tier 1 capital which will be calculated by the first paragraph of the Article 4 of
Regulation on Capital Conservation and Countercyclical Capital buffers to Risk Weighted Assets (%o)

Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)

Non-significant investments in the capital of other financials

Significant investments in the common stock of financials

|Morigage servicing rights (net of related 1ax liability)

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability)

Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 capital

Provisions cligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject 10 standardised approach (prior to application of cap)

ICap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardised approach

Provisions cligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject 1o intemal ratings-based approach (prior to application of cap

Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under intemal ratings-based approach

Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements (only applicable between 1 Jan 2018 and 1 Jan 2022

Current cap on Additional Tier | capital instruments which subject to phase out arrangements in the Provisional Article
H of the Regulation on Banks' Own Funds
Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap {excess over cap after redemptions and maturities) which subject to Provisional
Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks® Own Funds
Current cap on Tier 2 capital instruments which subject to phase out arrangements in the Provisional Article 4 of the
{Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds
Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess over cap afier redemptions and maturities) which subject to Provisional
IArticle 4 of the Regulation on Banks™ Own Funds

(*) Amounts in this coloumn represents the amounts of items that are subject to iransition provisions in accordance with the temprorary Articles o
P ] p I y
“Regulations regarding to changes on Regulation on Equity of Banks ™ and taken into consideration at the end of iransition process.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31 December

2015(*)
COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 CAPITAL
Paid-in capital to be Entitled for Compensation after All Creditors 255,000
Share premium s
Share cancellation profit 5
Legal reserves 324
Income passed on to sharcholders’ equity in accordance with TAS .
Profit S
Net Income for current period S
Prior period profit 5
Provisions for possible risks -
Bonus shares of Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint-Ventures -
Common Equity Tier | Capital Before Deductions 255,324
Deductions From Common Equity Tier | Capital
Loss excess of reserves and loss passed on to sharcholders™ equity n accordance with TAS {-) M1
Leasehold Improvements (-) 26
Goodwill and other intangible assets and related deferred tax liabilities. (-) 468
Net deferred tax income/expense (-) 99
Shares noncompliant with article 56/4 of the Law (-) &
Direct or indirect investments on Bank's own Common Tier 1 Capital {-) 5

Total net long pasition exceeding 10% of Bank's Commeon Tier | capital, belonging to investments on own funds of banks and
linancial institutions that are not consolidated, with a sharcholding ol 10% and below -
Total net long position exceeding 10% of Bank's Commen Tier | capital, belonging to investmenis on own funds of banks and

financial institutions that are not consolidated, with a shareholding of 10% and above -
Rights of providing morigage service exceeding 10% of Common Tier 1 capnal (=) -
Deffered tax assets based on temporary differences exceeding 10% of Common Tier 1 capital (-) -
Balances in accordance with the tlemporary anticle 2/2 of Regulation on Sharcholders’ Equity of Banks exceeding 15% of

Common Tier 1 capital (-) -
Excess amount arising from total net long position belonging to investments on Commen Tier | Capital of banks and financial

institutions that are not consolidated, with a shareholding above 10% -
Excess amount arising from rights of providing mongage service (-) .
Exceess amount arising from defTered tax assets based on temporary differences (-}

Other items determined by board (-) -
Deduction amount frem Common Tier | Capital in case of shortage of additional Tier 1 capital or supplementary capital (-}

Total Deductions From Common Equity Tier 1Capital 25,365
Total Common Equity Tier 1Capital 229,959

ADDITIONAL TEER 1 CAPITAL
Premiums of privilege share capital not included in Common Equity Tier | capital
Debt instruments which is seen appropriate by corporation and premiums in accordance with these instruments ([ssued after

1.1.2014) -
Debt instruments which is seen appropriate by corporation and premiums in accordance with these instruments (Issued belore

1.12014) .
Additional Tier 1 Capital Before Deductions -
Deductions From Additional Tier 1 Capital -

Direct or indirect investments which bank provides for its’ own additional Tier | capital (-)

10% exceed part of Common Tier Icapital of bank from the sum of parinership share on banks and financial institutions that are

not consolidated, with a shareholding less than 10% (-) .
10% exceed part of Common Tier | capital of bark from the sum of pantnership share on banks and financial institutions that are

not consolidated, with a shareholding ol 10% and above {-) -
Oither items determined by board (-} .
Deduction amount of additional core capital in case of there is not enough additional core capital or supplementary capital {-} -
Total Deductions From Additional Tier 1 Capital -
Total Additional Tier I Capital -
Deductions From Tier 1 Capital -
Nen deducted Common Tier | capital part in accordance with deferred tax expense and goodwill impairment and other intangible

fixed assets which is in temporary article 2/1 of Regulation of Sharegolders’ Equity of Banks. (-)

Non deducted Common Tier | capital part in accordance with net deferred tax income/expense which is in temporary article 2/1 of

Regulation of Sharegolders” Equity of Banks. - i49
Total Tier 1 Capital 229.810
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

AND RISK

31 December 2015 {*}

SUPPLEMENTARY CAPITAL

Debt instruments which is seen appropriate by corporation and premiums in accordance with these instruments (Exported afier
1.1.2014)

Debt instruments which is seen appropriate by corporation and premiums in accordance with these instruments (Exponted before
1.1.2014)

Pledged sources to bank from shareholders which 15 used for share capital increasing of bank

General Provisions 2670

Supplementary Capital Before Deductions 1,670

Deductions From Supplementary Capital

Drrect or indirect investments which bank provides for its” own supplementary capital (=) -

10% exceed part of Common Tier | capital of bank from the sum of pannership share on banks and financial institutions that

are not consolidated, with a sharcholding less than 10% (-) -

10% exceed part of Common Tier | capital of bank from the sum of parinership share on banks and financial institutions that

are not conselidated, with a sharcholding of 10% and above {-) -

Other items detenmined by board (-) =

Total Deductions From Supplementary Capital -

Total Supplementary Capital 2,670

CAPITAL 232,480

Loans extended being nencomphant with articles 50 and 51 of the Law (-} 5

Net book values of propenics owned, exceeding 50% of banks' equity and properties, and trade goods overtaken in exchange for

loans and receivables that should be disposed within five years in accordance with anticle 57 of the Law, but not yet disposed (-) -
Investments to loans extended to banks, financial institutions {domestic and abroad) and qualified shareholdets, like secondary

subordinated loan and debt mstruments purchased from these institutions issued, like primary and secondary subordinated loan

-} 3
Deduction from equity 1n accordance with 2nd article of 20th item in Regularity of Measurement and Valuation of Capital

Adequacy of Banks (-) =
Other accounts determined by board (-) -
Non deducted part of comon equity tier] , additional core and supplementary capital in accordance with temporary article 2/1 of

Regulation of Sharegolders” Equity of Banks which is 10%% exceed part of Commaon Tier 1 capital of bank from the sum of

partnership share on banks and financial institutions that are not consolidated, with a shareholding less than 10% (-) -
Non deducted part of comon eguity tier), additional core and supplementary capital in accordance with temporary article 2/1 of

Regulation of Sharegolders” Equity of Banks which is 10% exceed part of Common Tier 1 capital of bank from the sum of

partnership share on banks and financial institutions that are not conselidated, with a shareholding of 10% or above {-) -
Non deducted part of comon equity tier} generating from exceed amount generating from investments to Common Tier |

capitals of partnership share on banks and financial institutions that are not conselidated, with a shareholding of 10% and above,

temporary differences of deferred tax income and the right of offering mortgage services explained in the (st and 2nd paragraphs

of temporary article 2 of Regulation of Sharcholders’ Equity of Banks (-) -
SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY 232,480
Amounts Below Overrun Amounts In Applied Reducing Procedures 182
Amount generating from long position of investments to sharcholders’ equity and pantnership share on banks and financial

institutions that are not consolidated, with a shareholding less than 10% -
Amount generating from long position of investments to sharcholders’ equity and partnership share on banks and financial

institutions that are not consolidated, with a sharchelding of 10% or above -
Amount generating from right of offering mortgage service -
Amount generating from temporary differences of deferred income 1ax income 382

(*} Total capital has been calculated in accordance with the “Reguniations regarding to changes an Regulation on
Egquity of Banks ™ effective from date 31 March 2016, the information given in the prior period column has been
calculated pursuant to former regulation.

b.  Information about instruments that will be included in total capital calculation:

None,
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

II.

EXPLANATIONS ON CURRENCY RISK

The Bank's foreign currency position is managed within the limits set by legislation and the Bank,
The basic principle in foreign currency risk management is not to be exposed to currency risk.
Accordingly, the exchange-trading risk positions are not allocated to the limit, banking accounts as of the
currency by creating a matched asset-liability structure is aimed to provide natural protection. The Bank
uses derivative financial instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts and currency swaps for
hedging purposes in foreign currency denominated transactions.

Bank's methodology of digitising the foreign currency position includes the use of standard method when
calculating the capital adequacy ratio and application of internal stress tests/ sensitivity analysis.

The Bank’s publicly announced foreign exchange bid rates as of the date of the financial statements and
for the last five business days prior to that date:

USD EURO
Bid Rate 2.8848 3.2078
1. Bid rate 2.8936 3.2044
2. Bid rate 29130 3.2262
3. Bid rate 2.9365 3.2402
4. Bid rate 2.9266 3.2444
5. Bid rate 2.8799 3.2728

The simple arithmetic average of the Bank’s foreign exchange bid rates for the last thirty days preceding
the balance sheet date:

usD EURO
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
Arithmetic average - 30 days 29178 29177 3.2750 3.1770

By 31 December 2015; The Bank’s USD bid rate is 2.9181 and EUR bid rate is 3.1838.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Information on currency risk of the Bank:

The following table shows the foreign currency net general position of the bank on the basis of
foreign currencies. In accordance with GAAP, assets which are indexed to foreign currency are
shown on financial statements as TL rather than foreign currencies.

Assets which are indexed to foreign currency are considered as foreign currency item in calculation
of foreign currency net general position. In accordance with the “Regulation on Calculation and
Implementation of Foreign currency net general position/equity standard rate by banks on
consolidated and non-consolidated basis”, marketable derivative financial assets, hedge derivative
financial assets, deferred tax asset and paid in cash expenses in assets; general provisions, deferred
tax liability, marketable derivative financial liabilities, hedge derivative financial liabilities and
equities in liabilities are taken into account in calculation of exchange risk. Therefore, there are
differences between foreign currency assets and liabilities total included in table below and those
included in balance sheet. Actual foreign currency position of the Bank is shown in the table below
in financial and economic context.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
EUR USD Other FC Total
30 June 2016
Assets
Cash and Balances with The Central Bank of the
Republic of Turkey I 14,725 14,726
Due From Banks 1.881 9413 - 11,294
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - - 5 g
Interbank Money Market Placements - s :
Available-for-sale Financial Assets - - . -
Loans(*) 41,381 63,021 - 104,402
Investments in Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint - . -
Ventures "
Held-to-maturity Investments - . -
Hedging Derivative Financial Assels * - .
Tangible Assets : 2 S g
Intangible Assets . - - £
Other Assets - 37 - 7
Total Assets 43,263 87,196 - 130,459
Liabilities
Bank Deposits = = =
Foreign Currency Deposils 2 = -
Funds From Interbank Money Market - - -
Funds Borrowed From Other Financial Institutions 35,506 THAYT - 114,003
Marketable Securities Issued & . & .
Miscellaneous Payables - = -
Hedging Derivative Financial Liabilities . -
Other Liabilities 9] 14 . 105
Total Liabilities 35,597 78,511 - 114.108
Net On-balance Sheet Position 7,666 8,685 . 16,351
Net Off-balance Sheet Position (6,416} - - (6.416)
Financial Derivative Assets(**) 5 .
Financial Derivative Liabilities(**) 6416 B - 6416
Non-Cash Loans 24,258 30,349 182 57,119
31 December 2015
Total Assets 15,055 89,145 10,234 114,644
Total Liabilities 6,409 75171 - 81,540
Net On-balance Sheet Position 8.646 14,184 10,234 33,064
Net Off-balance Sheet Position (8.438) (18,384) S (26,822)
Financial Derivative Assets 8437 - S 8,437
Financial Derivative Liabilities 16,875 18,364 . 35,259
Non-Cash Loans (*+) 24.101 41.563 1,666 67330

{*} Foreign exchange linked loans amounting to TL, 28,130 (31 December 2015 - TL 23,846) are also included.

{**) Forward and swap transactions included
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

III. EXPLANATIONS ON INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that expresses the effects of fluctuations in the market interest rates on the
value increase/decrease of the Bank’s interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities.

The interest rate sensitivity of Assets, Liabilities and Off-balance sheet items is carefully followed up by
the treasury department of the Bank. Assets and liabilities which are sensitive to interest are managed in
such a way that minimizes the interest risk.

The interest rate risk of the banking items is measured legally in accordance with the “Regulation on
Measurement and Assessment of Standard Shock Method on the interest rate risk arising from banking
accounts”, and this legal limit is monitored and reported monthly, based on this measurement.

Interest rate sensitivity of the Bank:
a. Interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items based on repricing dates

Non-
Uptol 1-3 3-12 5 Year| Interest
30 June 2016 Month| Months| Months| 1-5 Year| and over| Bearing Total
Assets
Cash (Cash in Vault, Effectives, Cash in
Transit, Cheques Purchased) and
Balances with The Central Bank of the
Republic of Turkey 14.623 - - - - 436 15,059
Duc From Banks 17.373 - - - - 2.936 20,309
Financial Asscts at Fair Value Through
Profit/Loss - - 408 - - - 408
Interbank Moncy Market Placements 11.304 - - - - - 11.304
Available-for-Sale Financial Asseis 6.353 4.721 5465 - - - 16.539
Loans 145,649 94,238 83,605 3.293 - - 326,785
Held-to-Maturity Investments - - - - - - -
Other Assets (*) - - - - - 8,831 8.831
Total Assets 195,302 98,959 89,478 3,293 - 12,203 399,235
Liabilities
Bank Deposits - - - - . - -
Other Deposits - - - - - - -
Funds From Interbank Moncy Market 10,010 - - - - - 10,010
Miscellaneous Payables . g G G . 39 39
Marketable Securities Issued - - - - - - -
Fun_dﬁ lliorrowed From Other Financial 48,721 3220 44,689 41,380 ) . 138,010
Institutions == )
Other Liabilities (**) G - - - - 251,176 251,176
Total Liabilities 58,731 3,220 44,689 41,380 - 251,215 399,235
Balance Sheet Long Position 136,571 95,739 44,789 - - - 277,099
Balance Sheet Short Position ) B 1 38087 Sl (277.099)
Off-balance Sheet Long Position - - - - - - -
Off-balance Sheet Short Position - - - - - - -
Total Position 136,571 95,739 44,789 (38.087) - (239,012) -
") Other assets includes miscellaneous receivables, tangible Assers, intangible Assets and non-interets bearing assels in other assets and tax assets
(**)  Sharcholders’ equity, inierets bearing liabilities in other liabilities and wax liabality is presented under “Dther Liabilities™ in the “Non-lmerest Bearing” column
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK

MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Non-
Uptold 1-3 3-12 5 Year| [nterest
31 December2015 Month| Months)| Months| 1-5 Year| and over| Bearing Tatal
1S,
Asse Cash (Cash in Vault, Effectives, Cash
in Transit, Cheques Purchased) and
Balances with The CBRT 11,772 - - - - 891 12,663
Due From Banks 26.015 - - - - 21,342 47.357
Financial Assets at Fair Value
Through Profit/Loss - 604 - - - - 604
Interbank Money Market Placements - - - - - - -
Available-for-Sale Financial Assets 256 - 9.363 - - - 92619
Loans 105,683 41488 52.357 2.164 44,052 - 245,744
Held-to-Maturity Investments - - - - - . -
Other Assets (*) - - - - - 6.418 6.418
Total Assets 143,726 42,092 61,720 2,164 44,052 28,651 322 405
Linbilities
Bank Deposits - - - - - - -
Other Deposits - - - - - - -
Funds From Interbank Money Market - - - - - - -
Miscellaneous Payables - - - - - 100 100
Marketable Securities Issued - - - - - - -
Funds Borrowed From Other
Financial Institutions 9.125 - 21,086 41,100 - - 71311
Other Liabilities (*%) - - - - - 250,994] 250,994
Total Liabilities 9.125 - 21,086 41,100 - 251,094 322 405
Balance Sheet Long Position 134,601 42,092 40,634 - 44,052 - 261379
Balance Sheet Short Position - - 38.936 - 222443 261379
Ofl-balance Sheet Long Position - - - - - - -
Off-balance Sheet Short Position - - - - - - -
Total Position 134,601 42,092 40,634 38,936 44,052 222,443 -
") Orher asse1s includes miscetlancous receivabl ble Asscts, i ible Assets and non-imterets bearing assets in other assets and tax assets

£**)

Shareholders’ equity, non-interets bearing liabilitiesin other liabilitics and tax liabilnty is presented under “Orther Liabilities” in the “Non-Interest Bearing™ column
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INFORMATION

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

b.

Average interest rates for monetary financial instruments:

RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK

The average interest rates in the following tables are calculated by weighting the simple interest to

principle amounts.

30 June 2016

EUR %

USD %

JPY

TL %

Assets

Cash (Cash in Vault, Effectives, Cash in
Transit, Cheques Purchased) and Balances
with the CBRT

0.49

4.73

Due From Banks

0.40

10,27

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
ProfivLoss

Interbank Monev Market Placements

11.89

Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

9.29

Loans

13.19

Held-to-Maturity Investments

Liabilities

Bank Deposits

Other Deposits

Funds From Interbank Money Market

9.35

Miscellaneous Payables

Marketable Securitics Issued

Funds Borrowed From Other Financial Inst.

L= O T T VI Y

20

10.30

USD %

JPY %

TL %

31 December 2015

Assets

Cash (Cash in Vault, Effectives, Cash in
Transit, Cheques Purchased) and Balances
with the CBRT

Due From Banks

10.60

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
Profit/Loss

Interbank Money Market Placements

10.95

Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

8.80

Loans

12.28

Held-to-Maturity Investments

Linbilities

Bank Deposits

Other Deposits

Funds From Interbank Money Market

9.79

Miscellancous Payables

Marketable Securities Issued

Funds Borrowed From Other Financial Inst.

!J
i e |

10.75

IV. EXPLANATIONS ON EQUITY POSITION RISK

The Bank does not hold equity position as of 30 June 2016 (31 December 2015: None).
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

V.

EXPLANATIONS ON LIQUIDITY RISK

a) Information on risk capacity, responsibilities and structure of liquidity risk management,
reporting of liquidity risk at bank, liquidity risk management including how liquidity risk strategy,
policy and implementations communicates with board of directors and business units:

Liquidity risk is the risk occurring as a result of non-availability of sufficient cash on hand or cash inflow
to meet cash outflows in a timely manner completely as a result of imbalance in cash flows.

Treasury department manages the liquidity of the Bank daily and informs assets and liabilities committee
weekly about the liquidity level of the Bank. Treasury department is responsible for planning liquidity
management, taking measures and informing the senior management of aforementioned issues,

The Bank forms its assets and liabilities in balance not to create a negative gap on cumulative basis in
maturity segments.

In accordance with the “Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Liquidity Adequacy of Banks”
entered into force after published on Official Gazette dated November 1, 2006 and numbered 26333 by
BRSA, weekly simple average of total liquidity adequacy rates related to primary maturity segment and
total liquidity adequacy rate related to secondary maturity segment cannot be less than 100% while weekly
simple average of foreign currency liquidity ratio related to primary maturity segment and foreign
currency adequacy rate related to secondary maturity segment cannot be less than 80%.

Treasury department manages the liquidity of the Bank daily and informs assets and liabilities committee
weekly about the liquidity level of the Bank. Treasury department is responsible for planning liquidity
management, taking measures and informing the senior management of aforementioned issues.

Financial planning and control department is legally responsible for measuring and reporting of liquidity
risk. Stress test applied to liquidity position and calculation of liquidity coverage rate is performed by
Liquidity Management Department.

Risk Management Department monitors related unit’s activities and reports to the Senior Management
monthly.

b) Information on centralization grade of liquidity management and funding strategy and its
functionality among Bank and its affiliates:

There is no structured liquidity management requiring centralization between bank and its affiliates.

¢) Information on funding strategy of the Bank including policies related to diversity of funding
sources and periods:

The main funding sources of the Bank are provided by domestic and foreign banks and repo transactions
and Money market transactions and diversification of aforementioned sources are made in order to
minimize liquidity risk. Financial Institutions Department carries out studies which are required to relate
supplying of long term foreign source.

36



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
IN TURKISH, SEE NOTE I OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AT 30 JUNE 2016

{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)

INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

¢) Information on liquidity management based on currencies forming at least 5% of total liabilities
of the Bank:

Almost all the liabilities of the Bank consists of TL, USD and EUR and equities mainly forming the TL
sources.

TL liquidity of the Bank is managed through funds provided from domestic and foreign banks via repo
transactions made in BIST using high quality (premium) securities.

TL and foreign currency cash flow of the Bank in scope of Balance sheet management is monitored
separately. Risk Management Unit reports to ALCO weekly and Board of Directors on a monthly basis.

d) Information on liquidity risk reduction techniques

Liquidity limits are determined in order to keep the risk regarding liquidity risk in defined limits and to
monitor liquidity position. The aforementioned limits have been determined in accordance with
“Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Bank’s Liquidity Adequacy” in Risk Limits document
and approved by Board of Directors.

¢) Disclosure regarding use of stress test

At least one of the following liquidity stress tests related to issues mentioned below is applied monthly

and result of the related test is reported to Board of Directors by Risk Management Unit.

- Negative influence of economic crisis occurring in domestic finance markets on the liquidity
of the bank.

- Negative influence of global crisis on the liquidity of the Bank.

- Negative influence of a problem occurred within the Bank (abuse, fraud, reputation risk etc.).

Threshold of weekly and monthly liquidity rate for stress tests which shall be applied for above mentioned
scenarios is taken into consideration as 80% for foreign currency assets/liabilities and as 100% for total
assets/liabilities.

f) Information related to emergency and unexpected situation plan for Liquidity:

“Emergency and unexpected situation plan for Liquidity” is approved by the Board of Directors and
established in order to manage possible liquidity crisis and required actions for losses which can occur in
extraordinary conditions are determined with preventing mechanisms and liquidity squeeze scenarios.
The scope of the aforementioned plan is to pre-determine applicable scenarios, measurement of liquidity
risk and the actions which shall be taken towards those risks.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

g. Liquidity ratios realized in the current period

First Maturity Tranche (Weekly) Sccond Maturity Tranche (Monthly)

FQ FC+TL FC FC+TL
30 June 2016
Average (%) 246 513 165 531
Maximum (%) 496 1,746 266 1,329
Minimum (%a) 131 306 99 269

First Maturity Tranche (Weckly) Second Maturity Tranche (Monthly)

F(Q FC+TL FC FC+TL
31 December 2015 Er
Average (Yo) 4,008 3,178 2,157 2.748
Maximum (%) 22221 24 685 34,473 41,234
Minimum {%) 120 390 82 382
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INFORMATION RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

h. Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Referring to the BRSA’s announcement dated 29/12/2014, No: 30223; it is announced that development and
investment banks’ consolidated and unconsolidated liquidity coverage ratio will be applied as 0 % by 2016
according to paragraph 5 of article 4 of Regulations About Banks® Liquidity Coverage Ratio Measurement.

Current Period-31.06.2016 Total amount which is not Total amount which is applied
applied consideration rate consideration rate
TP+YP [yp TP+YP [ve
High-quality Liquidty Assets (HHLA)
1 High-quality Liguidty Assets | 13.003| 6939

Cash Qutflows

2 Real person nssets and retail assets - = 5 -
3 Stable assels - = S -
4 Lower Stable assels - s - -
5 Qut of junior debts from real person asscts and retail assels 8.908 6.335 14,107 9.662
6 Operational assets = 5 - -

7 Non —operating assels - - - -

8  Other Junior debt 8.908 6,335 14,107 9.662
9 Secured Debis - -
10 Other Cash Outflows 31,523 27.004 12,953 13.345
11 Derivative liabilitics and margin ligbilities 27 4.185 112 4.114

12 Debts from Structured financial instruments - - = 3

13 Payment commitments for debts to financial markets and other ofi-
balance sheet liabilities 31.498 22.819 12.841 9231

14 Revocable off-balance sheet other liabilities and other contractual
liabilities notwithstanding 1o any conditions - S A .

15 Other irrevocable or conditionally revocable off-balance sheet liabilities - - - -
16 TOTAL CASII OUTFLOYWS 43,958 27,427
CASH INFLOWS
17 Secured receivables - - - -

18 Unsecured receivables 172.439 6,330 115.466 6,883

19 Other cash inflows 34 86 260 194

20 TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 172,473 6416 115,726 7077
Upper limit applied amount

21 TOTAL HLA STOCK 13,003 6939

22 TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS 12,344 20350 |

23 LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATION (%) 105.34% 34.10%
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

i

Breakdown of assets and liabilities according to their outstanding maturities:

Uptol 1-3 3-12 5 Year and
Demand month|  Month{ Month| [-5 Year Over| Unclassified (*) Total

30 June 2016
Assets

Cash (Cash in Vault, Effectives, Cash in

TFransit, Cheques Purchased) and Balances

with the CBRT 436 14,623 - - - - -f 15,059

Due From Banks 2936 17.373 - - - - - 20309

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through

Profit/Loss - - 408 - - - - 408

Interbank Money Market Placemenis - 11.304 - - - - - 11,304

Available-for-Sale Financial Asscts - 6.353 4.721 5465 - - -| 16,539

Loans - 94.069,  61.190| (24,685 3293 43.548 -l 326,785

Held-to-Maturity Investments - - - - - - - -

Other Assets (*) - 6,564 - - - - 2,267 8.431

Total Assets 3372 150286] 66,319 130,150, 3,293 43,548 2267 399235
Liabilities

Bank Deposits - - - - - - - -

Other Deposits - - - - - - - -

Funds From Interbank Money Market - 48,721 3,220 44,689 41,380 - -1 138,010

Miscellaneous Payables - 10,010 - - - - - 10,010

Marketable Securities Issued - - - - - - - -

Funds Borrowed From Otiier Financial

Institutions - 39 - - - - - 39

Other Liabilities (**) 167 8.346 - - - - 242,663 251,176

Total Liabilities 167 67,116 3220 44,6891 41,380 - 242,663, 399,235
Net Liguidity Gap 3205 83,170) 63,099 85,461| (38.087) 43,548 -
31 December 2015 =

Total Asscts 222331 100954| 56531 83.2150 13.307 44.052 2.113] 322405

Total Liabilitics 10,272 14,434 -1 21.086| 41.100 - 235,513 322405
Net Liquidity Gap 11,961 86,5200 56,531 62,129| (27,793) 44,052 233.400) s

(*)  Asscls that are necessary for bankinp: activities and that cannot be liquidated in the short-term, such as fixed assets, associates and subsidiarics, stationary
stocks, prepaid expenses and loans under follow-up, are classified in this column.
(**)  Sharcholders’ equity, provisions and commissions collected in advance is presented under “Other liabilnies™ nem in the “Unclassified” column.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

VL EXPLANATIONS ON LEVERAGE RATIO

Unconsolidated leverage ratio was realized as 44.41 % (31 December 2015: 54.8%). The increase
occurred in the on-balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet transactions led to a change in leverage
compared to the previous period. Regulation has been linked to the provision of the minimum

leverage ratio of 3%.

Current Period* | Prior Period *
Asset On The Balance Sheet
Assets on the balance sheet (excluding derivative financial instruments and loan
derivatives, including collaterals) 375,493 309,195
(Assets deducted from core capital) (669) {(7137)
Total risk amount for assets on the balance sheet 374,824 308,458
Derivative Financial Instruments and Loan Derivatives
Rencwal cost of derivative financial instruments and loan derivatives 503 498
Potential credit risk amount of derivative financial instruments and loan derjvatives 8i 238
Total risk amount of derivative financia) instruments and loan derivatives 584 736
Financing Transactions With Securities Or Goods Warranties
Risk amount of financial transactions with securities or goods warranties (excluding
those in the balance sheet) - -
Risk amount arising from intermediated transactions - S
Total risk amount of financing transactions with securities or goods warranties 317 -
Off-the-Balance Sheet Transactions
Gross nominal amount of the off-the-balance sheet transactions 154,696 108,645
Adjustment amount arising from multiplying by the credit conversion rate - -
Total risk amount for off-the-balance sheet transactions 154,696 108,645
Capital and Total Risk
Core capital 235,549 229,104
Total risk amount 530,421 417,839
Leverage Ratio
Leverage ratio 44.41% 54.8%

e 3 months average.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
VII. EXPLANATIONS ON THE RISK MANAGEMENT

Notes and explanations in this section have been prepared in accordance with the Communiqué on Disclosures
about Risk Management to be announced to public by banks that have been published in official gazette no 29511
on October 23, 2015.

a. Bank’s risk management approach

The Bank’s risk management strategy covers the measurement of risk faced with the Bank, manages the policies
keep current and adapts to changing and managing conditions. Risk appetite due to goals and strategies determined
by the Board of Director of Bank is regularly monitored with capital, liquidity, profitability and other risks appetite
indicators.

Risk Management Unit, is responsible for making regular and timely reporting due to analysing the risk
measurement and monitoring results to the Board of Director and Executive Management.

Bank exposure to risk is measured and monitored in accordance with laws and rgulations by reference to methods
that comply with international standards. Due to management of major risks, determining strategies and decision
making detailed reporting are created to be reviewed by Board of Directors and Executive Management.
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INFORMATION

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

b. General view to risk weighted amounts

RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK

30 June | 31 December 30 June
2016 2015 2016

Minimum

RWA capital

requirements
30 June | 31 December 30 June
2016 2015 2016
1 Credit risk (excluding counterparty credit risk) (CCR) 329,679 238,114 26,336
2 Of which standardised approach (SA) 329.679 238,114 26.336
3 Of which internal rating-based ({RB) approach - - -
4 Counterparty credit risk 556 200 44
5 Of which standardised approach for counterparty credit risk (SA-CCR) 556 200 44
6 Of which internal model method (IMM) - - -
7 Lquity positions in banking book under market-based approach - - -
8 Equity investments in funds — look-through approach - - -
9 Equity investments in funds — mandate-based approach - - -
10 Equity investments in funds — fall-back approach - - -
11 | Settlement risk - - -
12 | Securitisation exposures in banking book - - -
13 Of which IRB ratings-based approach (RBA) - - -
14 Of which IRB Supervisory Formula Approach (SFA) - - -
15 Of which SA/simplified supervisory formula approach (SSFA) - -
16 | Market risk 10.269 10,635 822
17 Of which standardised approach (SA) 10.269 10,635 822
18 Of which internal model approaches (IMM) - - -
i9 | Operational risk 20.533 4,432 1.643
20 Of which Basic Indicator Approach 20,533 4,432 1,643
21 Of which Standardiscd Approach - -
22 Of which Advanced Measurement Approach - -
23 | Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (subject to 250% risk weight) - -
24 | Floor adjustment - -
25 | Total (1+4+7+8+9+10+11+12+16+19+23+24) 361,036 253,381 28,845

¢. Financial statements and risk amounts relation

Notes and explanations in this section have been prepared in accordance with the Communiqué on Disclosures
about Risk Management to Be Announced to Public by Banks.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

d. Issues related with credit risk announced to public

Credit Risk Management, contains identification of credit risk, measurement and management.

Various diversifications are applied to prevent concentration during the determination of Bank’s credit risk profile.
Customer choice is made in line with specified risk limits and the borrower’s obligations, cash flow expected to be
obtained from its own activities and capability to pay on time are taken into consideration in the assessments.

Risk rating models developed in the Bank (borrower rating model and facility rating model) provide separation of
customers in the best way in terms of credibility to grade by using objective criteria.

Outputs of risk rating models are also used to measure the risk of default of the customer and portfolio as well as
being an important part of the loan approval process.

In order to achieve the goals determined in the bank, effective risk management policy is applied in which
mechanisms classifying risk and customers correctly are established. Due to evaluate an accurate assessment of risk
objectives appropriate decision systems are established and the customer structures of limits are defined. When
determining the limits, consideration of the relevant risk factors will result the appropriate level of loss and return.

Analysis and intelligence work is carried out to measure the credibility of the customer whom there exist a credit
relation. Customer history is examined and evaluated by putting forward all current and future non-financial data.

In a manner for consistent assessment of risk, the customer’s credit request for quantification and monitoring, the
detection of a customer’s credit worthiness, collateralization, structuring the loan approval, utilization of the loan
process consisting of monitoring closure phases of the loan in order to make correct decisions for customers that
handle all information and documents shared are gathered under the data base. Loan proposals are evaluated and
concluded by General Manager, Credit Committee or by the Board of Directors within the limits specified. Credit
risk is measured, monitored and reported by Risk Unit.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

1. KRI1-Credit quality of assets :

Gross carrying values of {(according
to TAS)
Defaulted Nen-defaulted Allowances/
exposures exposures impairements* | Net values (a+b-c)
1 | Loans - 326,785 - 326,785
2 | Debt Securities - 16,539 - 16,539
Off-balance sheet
3 | exposures - 146,226 - 146,226
4 | Total - 489,550 - 489,550

(*) The Bank provides no general and specific provisions in the table based on the assessments and estimates of
the management, by considering the “Communiqué Related to Principles and Procedures on Determining the
Qualifications of Banks’ Loans and Other Receivables and the Provision for These Loans and Qther
Receivables” (“Provisioning Regulation™) published in the Official Gazette No. 26333 dated November 1,
2006.

2. KR2 - Changes in stock of defaulted loans and debt securities:

The table KR2, which shows the changes in stocks of receivables in default and debt instruments is not prepared
since the Bank does not have any receivables in default and debt instruments.

3. KR3 - Credit risk mitigation techniques — Overview :

Basic principles of lending activities is the full measurement of borrowers’ capacity to be able to pay back the debt
at a predetermined maturity and to fulfill its obligations completely and accurately. For this purpose the borrower
rating system is used. Allocation of guarantee is important for the risk mitigation instrument and process grading
system is used to make evaluations in this scope.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Bank calculates estimated cash equivalents which shall be generated to provide that the guarantees are
translated into cash through discounting guarantees over their values at certain rates.The difference between the
cash equivalent of the guaranty and credit is defined as the net risk. The calculation of the net risk and the
coefficients used are considered in rating model.

Exposures
Exposures Exposures secured by Exposures
unsecured: secured by financial secured by
carrying collateral, of | Exposures | guarantees, | Exposures credit
amount Exposures which: | secured by | of which: | secured by | derivatives, of
(According to| secured by secured financial secured credit | which: secured
TAS) collateral amount | guarantees amount | derivatives amount
| [Loans 326,785 . - - - . :
2 | Debt securities 16,539 - - - - - -
3 [TOTAL 343,324 - - - - - -
Of which
4 | defaulted ) ) ) B j B )

e. Qualitative disclosures using the rating grades to calculate the banks' credit risk by
standard approach

Country risk classification, published by OECD, is taken as basis in the determination of risk weights of risk classes
mentioned in article 6 of Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Bank’s Capital Adequacy. Determination
of risk classes and risk weights of receivables from banks and intermediaries and corporate receivables in
accordance with capital adequacy regulations is performed in line with related legislation.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4. KR4: Standardised approach — Credit risk exposure and credit risk mitigation effects

Exposures before CCF Exposures post-CCF
and CRM and CRM RWA and RWA density
On- On-
balance | Off-balance balance | Off-balance
sheet sheet sheet sheet
Asset classes amount amount amount amount RWA | RWA density
Exposures to central
1 | governments or central banks 16,619 - 16,619 14,720 4.46%
Exposures to regional
governments or local
2 | authorities - - - - - 0.00%
Exposures to public sector
3 | entities - - - - - 0.00%
Exposures to multilateral
4 | development banks - - - - - .00%
Exposures to international
5 | organisations - - - - - 0.00%
6 | Exposures to institutions 259,875 77,079 243,835 16,039 101,554 30.75%
7 | Exposures to corporates 170,901 69,148 170,901 34,358 205,258 62.16%
8 | Retail exposures - - - - - 0.00%
Exposures secured by
9 | residential property - - - - - 0.00%
Exposures secured by
10 | commercial real estate - - - - - 0.00%
11 | Past-due loans - - - - - 0.00%
Higher-risk calegories by the
12 | Agency Board - - - - - 0.00%
Exposures in the form of
13 | covered bonds - - - - - 0.00%
Exposures to institutions and
corporates with a short-term
14 | credit assessment 4,734 - 4,734 - 947 0.29%
Exposures in the form of units
or shares in collective
investment undertakings
15 | (CIUs) - - - - - 0.00%
16 | Other assets - - - - - 0.00%
17 | Investments in equities 8,044 8,044 7.756 2.35%
18 | TOTAL 460,173 146,227 444,133 50,397 330,235 100.00%
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

5. KRS - Standardised approach - exposures by asset classes and risk weights

Guaranted by

0% [10% | 20% Mortgage | 75%

Digerleri

Total credit risk
exposure amount
(after CCF and
CRM)

16,619

1,154

160,166

259,874

205,259

205,259

OO~ |tn| & U1 | =

4,734

288 -

7,756

8,044

12,197 91,272 s

228,889

160,166

494,530

00w O oWnofe W b e

=]

=

13

Exposures to central governmenis or central banks

Exposures to regional governmenis of local authoritics
Exposures Lo public sector entities

Esposures 1o multilateral development banks

Exposures to iniemational organisations

Exposures 1o institutions

Exposures |0 corporates

Retail exposures

Expasures secured by residential property

Exposures secured by commercial real estate

Past-due loans

Higher-risk calegories by the Agency Board

Exposures in the form of covered bonds

Exposures to institutions and corporates with a short-term credit
assessment

Exposures in the form of units or shares in collective investment
undertakings (CIUs)

Investments in equitics

Other assets

Total
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

f. Issues related to counterparty credit risk (CCR)

1. KKRI-Analysis of counterparty credit risk (CCR) exposure by approach:

Exposure
Potential after credit Risk
Revaluation | credit risk risk | Weighted
Cost| exposure | EBPRT Alpha | mitigation | Amounts
1 | Standart Approach-CCR 394 64 - 1.4 458 229
= | Internal Model Approach . . . - . -
Simplified Standardised Approach
3 | for Credit Risk Mitigation ) ) ) ) 300 150
Comprehensive Method for Credit . . - . . -
4 | Risk Mitigaiton
Value at Risk for Repo Transactions, - . -
Securities or Commodity lending or
5 | borrowing transactions } )
6 | Total - 5 S - 758 379
2. KKR2 - Credit valuation adjustment capital charge :
Exposure (After credit Risk
risk mitigation Weighted
methods) Amounts
Total portfolio value with comprehensive approach CV A capital
adequacy -
1 (i} Value at risk component (3 *multiplier included) - -
2 (ii) Stressed Value at Risk (3*multiplier included) S 5
3 | Total portfolio value with simplified approach CVA capital adequacy 353 176
4 | Total amount of CVA capital adequacy 353 176
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3. KKR3 - Standardised approach — CCR exposures by regulatory portfolio and risk
weights :

Risk Weights

Total
Risk Classes 0% | 10% | 20% 50% | 75% | 100% | 150% | Digier | credit risk

Central govertnments and central banks receivables

Local governments and municipalities receivables

Administrative and non commercial receivables

Multilateral Development Bank receivables

Internatinal Organisations receivables

Banks and Intermediary Institutions receivables . 1,11 556

Corporale receivables

Retail receivables

Mortgage receivables

Non performing receivables

High risk defined receivables

Mortgage backed securities

Securitisation Positions

Short term credit rated banks and Intermediary
Institutions receivables

Collective investment undertaking investments

Equity investments

Other receivables _

Other assets

Total - - - 1,111 - - - - 556
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4. KKR4 - Risk class and counterparty credit risk based on PD:
The relevant table was not given because of the standard method is used in the calculation of capital adequacy.

5. KKRS - Composition of collateral for CCR exposure:

Collaterals or Other
Collaterals for Derivatives Transactions
Collaterals Taken Collaterals Given

Not Not Collaterals Collaterals

Reserved Reserved | Reserved Reserved Taken Given

Cash-Local Currency - - - - 10,010 -

Cash - Foreign Currency - - - - - -

Treasury Bond- Local

Currency B B - B 10,310
Treasury Bond - Foreign

Currency ) ) ) ) ) )

Total - - - - 10,010 10,310

6. KKRG6 - Credit derivatives exposures:

There is no credit derivatives arising from purchasing or selling the credit derivatives in the Bank’s portfolio.

7. KKRS - Exposures to central counterpartics
The Bank does not have transactions related with exposures to central counterparty, the related table has not been
prepared.
g. Issues related to securitisation positions announced to public

The Bank does not have transactions related with securitizations, the related table has not been prepared.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
h. Issues related to market risk announced to public

Market risk management of the Bank is organized and applied in accordance with principles and implementation
procedures mentioned in “Regulation on International Systems of Banks and [CAAP” and other related legislations
published by the Institution. Additionally, it is also aimed for the risk management of the Bank to be designed and
generated in scope of the best applications and risk management strategies which are globally accepted and adopted.

The Bank may bear the market risk in the form of open positions in terms of Risk Limits Document. The main
principles of market risk management in banking accounts is to create assets and liabilities matching with each
other.

RAT

Outright products
Interest rate risk (general and specific) 334

Equity risk (general and specific) -
Foreign exchange risk 9,936
Commodity risk -

ol kD |-

Options z
Stmplified approach -

Delta-plus method -

Scenario approach =

Securitisation -
Total 10,270

=R I--R R I - N L)
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

VIII. EXPLANATIONS ON OPERATING SEGMENTS

Treasury and Asset
Liability
Current Period Corporate Banking Management Total
Tolal Assets 326,785 72,450 399,235
Total Liabilities 167 399,068 399,235
Net Interest Income/(Loss) 15,467 (248) 15,219
Net Fee and Commission Income/(Loss) 561 - 561
Trading Gain/(Loss) - 897 897
Other Operating Segments Gain/(Loss) - 124 124
Provisions for Loan Losses and Other Receivables(-) {843) - (843)
Other Operating Expense (-) - {7,468) (7,468)
Profit Before Tax 15,185 (6,695) 8,490
Tax Provision - {1,865) (1,865)
Net Profit 15,185 (8.560) 6,625
Treasury and Asset
Liability
Previous Period Corporate Banking Management Total
Total Assets 245,744 76,661 322,405
Total Liabilitics 10,272 312,133 322,405
Net Interest Income/{Loss) 17,647 7,374 25.021
Net Fee and Commission Income/(Loss) 345 - 345
Trading Gain/(Loss) - 1,102 1,102
Other Operating Segments Gain/(Loss) - 97 97
Provisions for Loan Losses and Other Recejvables(-) (2,178) - (2,178)
Other Operating Expense (=) - {12,903) (12,903)
Profit Before Tax 15,814 {4,330) 11,484
Tax Provision - (2,697) (2,697)
Net Profit 15,814 (7.027) 8.787
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO
UNCONSOLIPATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SECTION FIVE

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO ASSETS

1. Information related to cash and the account of The Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey
(the “CBRT”):

a.

2. Information on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

a.

Information on cash and the account of the CBRT:

30 June 2016 31 December2015
TL FC TL FC
Cash/Foreign currency 18 6 6 5
CBRT 315 14,720 782 11,870
Other - - - -
Total 333 14,726 788 11,875
Information on the account of the CBRT:
30 June 2016 31 December2015
TL FC TL FC
Demand Unrestricted Amount 315 97 782 98
Time Unrestricted Amount - - - -
Time Restricted Amount - 14,623 - 11,772
Total 315 14,720 782 11.870

According to CBRT’s “Required Reserves Announcement” numbered 2005/, for Turkish
currency and foreign currency denominated liabilities, reserve requirement amounts held in
CBRT have been included in the above table.

As of 30 June 2016, the Bank has no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss subject
to repo transactions (31 December 20135: None).

As of 30 June 2016; there are no and financial assets given as collateral/are blocked

(31 December 2015: None).

Positive differences related to trading derivative financial assets:

30 June 2016 31 December2015

TF YP TP YP
Forward - -
Swap 408 - 604 -
Futures - - - -
Options - - - -
Other - - -
Total 408 - 604 -

Information on trading securities:

None (31 December 2015: None).
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{(Continued)
3.

4.

5.

Information on banks:

Information on banks:

30 June 2016 31 December2015
TL FC TL FC
Banks
Domestic 7,015 7,212 24,028 -
Foreign 2,000 4,082 2,000 21,329
Headquarters and Branches
Abroad - - - -
Total 9,015 11,294 26,028 21,329
Information on foreign banks accounts:
Unrestricted Amount Restricted Amount
31 June 31 December 31 June 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
European Union Countries 1.881 287 - -
USA, Canada p— 1,046 10.808 - -
OECD Countries (*) - - - -
Off-shore Banking Regions - - 41 -
Other o 3.155 12234 - -
Total 6.082 | 23.329 - -

(*) OECD Countrics other than EU countries, USA and Canada.

Information on available-for-sale financial assets:

a.

As of 30 June 2016 there are financial assets given as collateral/blocked amounting to TL 1,038

(31 December 2015: TL 1,026).

As of 30 June 2016 there are available-for-sale financial assets subject to repo transactions TL
10,310 (31 December 2015: None).

30 June 2016 31 December2015

Debt Secunties o 16,539 9.638
Quoted on Stock Exchange 16,539 9.638
Not Quoted - -
Share Certificates - -
Quoted on Stock Exchange - -
Not Quoted - -
Impairment Provision (-} - {(19)
Total 16,539 9.619

Explanations on loans:

a.

Information on all types of loans and advances given to shareholders and employees of the

Bank:
30 June 2016 i 31 December2015

Cash|  Non-Cash| Cash____Non-Cash
Direct Loans Granted to Shareholders - 22,644 - 22,475
Legal Entities 22.644 - 22,475
Individuals - - - -
Indirect Loans Granted to Shareholders - - - -
Loans Granted to Employees - - - -
Total - 22,644 - 22,475
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

b.

C.

Information on the first and second group loans and other receivables including loans that
have been restructured or rescheduled:

Standard Loans and Loans and Other Receivables Under Close
Other Reccivables Monitering

Loans and] Loans and other receivables Loans and Loans and other receivables

Other|_with revised contract terms Other|_with revised contract terms |
Receivables, Restructured or Receivables Restructured or
{Total) Rescheduled Other ('I’nlnl)| Rescheduled Other
Non-speciglized Loans 326,785 8,567 - - = -
Loans given Lo enterprises 118,570 - < - - ) .
Export Loans 8,567 8.567] - - o @il -
Import Loans - - -l - - J
Loans Granted to Financial 156,101 E E - - -
Seclor

Consumer Loans - = - =} - -
Credit Cards - 4 - - - -
Other 43,547 - - - e e
Specialized Loans E =] - - - L
(Other Reccivables - = = - = “
Total 326,785 8.567 = < - E

Number of modifications made to extend
payment plan

Standard loans and other
receivables

Loans and other receivables|

under close monitoring|

Extended by 1 or 2 times 8.567 -
Extended by 3.4 or 3 times - N
Extended by more than 5 times - .
Total 8.567 r

Extended period of time

Standard loans and other
receivables

Loans and other receivables
under close monitoring

0 - 6 Months

6 - 12 Months

8.567

1-2 Years

2-5 Years

5 Years and over

Total

8.567

Breakdown of loans according to their maturities:

Standard Loans and Other

Loans and Receivables Under

Receivables Close Monitoring
Cash Loans Loans and Other | Restructured or | Loans nnd.Other Restructured or
Receivables Rescheduled Receivables Rescheduled

[Short-Term Loans and Other Receivables 238,363 8,567 - -
Non-Specialized Loans 238363 - - -
Specialized Loans = - - -
Other Receivables - - - -

Medium and Long-Term Loans and Other;

[Receivables 79,855 - - -
Non-Specialized Loans 79,855 - - -
Speciahized Loans o - - -
Other Receivables - - - -
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

d. Information on consumer loans, individual credit cards, personnel loans and personnel
credit cards

None {31 December 2015: None).

e. Information on commercial instalment loans and corporate credit cards:

Medium-Long

30 June 2016

Short Term

Term

Total

Commercial installment loans-TC

3,293

3,293

Business residential loans

Automobile loans

3,293

3,293

Consumer loans - - -

Other s - -

Commercial installment loans- Indexed to FC = S -

Business residential Joans s - -

Automobile loans = - -

Consumer loans s = -

Other - - -

Commercial installment loans - FC = - -

Business residential loans s = -

Automobile loans = = -

Consumer loans = - -

Other = = -

Corporate credit cards-TC - - -

Installmem 5 5 -

Non-Installment = = -

Corporate credit cards-FC - - s

Installment - - -

Non-Installment = = -

Overdraft accounts-TC (Commercial customer) - - -

Overdrafl accounts-FC {Commercial customer) - -

Total - 3,293 3,293
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Medium-Long
Prior Period: 31 December 2015 Short Term Term Total

Commercinl installment loans-TC 2,163 2,163

Business residenttal loans

Autemobile loans 2,163 2,163

Consumer loans

Qther

Commercial installment loans- Indexed 10 FC

Business residential loans

Automobile loans

Consumer loans

Other

Commercial mnstallment loans - FC

Business residential loans

Automobile loans

Consumer loans

Other

Corporate credit cards-TC

Installment

Non-Installment

Corporate credit cards-FC

Installment

Non-Instaliment

Overdraft accounts-TC (Commercial customer)

Overdraft accounts-FC (Commercial customer)

[] [] 1 1 1 L] L] ] ] ] L L] L] 1 1 L] L] 1 1 1 L} L] L] L]

Total 2,163 2,163

f. Loans according to types of borrowers:

30 June 2016 31 December2015
Public - E
Private 326,785 245,744
Total 326,785 245,744
Distribution of domestic and foreign loans:

30 June 2016 31 December2015|
Domestic Loans 283,237 245,744
Forcign Loans 43,548 -
Total 326,785 245,744

Loans granted to investments in associates and subsidiaries:

None.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued)

i.  Specific provisions accounted for loans:

30 June 2016

31 December2015

Loans and Reccivables with Limited Collectability

Loans and Receivables with Doubtful Collectability

Uncollectible Loans and Receivables

Tatal

j- Information on non-performing loans (Net):

1. Information on non-performing loans restructured or rescheduled and other

receivables:

None (31 December 2015: None).

2. Information on the movement of total non-performing loans:

111, Group

1V. Group/

V. Grougp]

Receivables with
Limited Collectability

Loans and Other|Loans and Other Receivables

with
Doubtful Collectability

Uncollectible Loans]
and Other Receivables

Prior Period End Balance: -

Additions (+) -

Transfers from Other
Categorics of Non-performing
Loans {+} =

Transfers to Other Categories
of Non-Performing Loans (+)

Collections (-) -

Write-ofls (-) -

Corporate and Commercial
Loans

Retail Loans -

Credit Cards

QOther -
Period End Balance: -

Specific Provisions (-}

Net Balance on Balance Sheet

Date -

3. Information on non-performing loans granted as foreign currency loans:

None (31 December 2015: None).
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

4. Information on non-performing loans based on types of borrowers:

1L Group, 1V. Group, V. Group

Loans and Olher!T Loans and Other Receivables
Reccivables with with Uncollectible Loans
Limited Collectability Doubtful Collectability and Other Receivables

Current Period (Net) - s
Loans granted to corporaic
entitics and

real persons (Gross) - -
Specific Provisions
Amount(-)

Loans granted to
corporate entitics and
real persons {Net) - - b
Banks (Gross) - - -
Specific Provisions Amount
) - - -
Banks (INet) - - -
Other Loans and Advances
(Gross)

Specific Provisions Amount

Other Loans and
Advances (Net)

Prior Period (Net) - -
Loans granted to corporate
cntities and

real persons (Gross) - -
Specafic Provisions
Amount(-) - -
Loans granted to
corporate entities and
real persons (Net)
Banks (Gross)

Specific Provisions - m
Banks (Net) - -
Other Loans and Advances
(Gross)

Specific Provisions Amount
Other Loans and
Advan(Net)

k. Information on the collection policy of non-performing loans and other receivables and
information on the write-off policy of the Bank:

Non-performing loans and other receivables are collected through legal follow-up and
liquidation of collaterals. Credits that have become losses in nature, are attached to the
certificate of insolvency or insufficient collateral document, and written off from the Bank's
assets. However, if the Bank's receivable is an insignificant amount compared to the costs and
expenses to be incurred for the preparation of said documents, writing off of assets may be
performed if the Board of Directors decides so. As of 30 June 2016, There is no liquidation or
decrease in assets. (31 December 2015: None).




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED

IN TURKISH, SEE NOTE I OF SECTION THREE
PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.S.

NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira ("TL") unless otherwise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued)

5.
None (31 December 2015: None).

6. Information on investments in associates:

None (31 December2015: None).

Information on held-to-maturity investments:

Tl Information on subsidiaries (Net):
None (31 December2015: None).
8. Information on joint ventures:
None (31 December 2015: None).
9. Information on lease receivables (net):
None (31 December 2015: None).
10. Information on hedging derivative financial assets:
None (31 December 2015: None).
11. Infermation on property and equipment:
Leased Fixed| Other Tangible
rior Period End: 31 December 2015 Immovable Assets)  FixedAssetss, ~~ Total
Cost_ R B 271 716 987
Accumuloted D Degrcctmwn(-) N - (i36) B4 (47) ~ (483)
Net Book Value I 413 369 504
Current Period End: 30 Junc 2016 o ——
Net Book Value at the beginning of the Pmod - 135 369, 504
Additions R - - - N 171 M
ngposnls(-) net ) L o . - L B
[Depreciation {-) o i (34! 64! ~{98)
Impairment R I I | -
(Cost at Period End_ I D I L ﬁ-l‘lf - 1,158
Accumulated Depreciation at Period End(-) - 4 (7o) I 111 _(580)
Closing Net Book Value - 101 477 578
Leased Fixed] Other Tangible|
Prior Period End: 31 December 2014 Immovable Assets Fixed Assels Total
Cost N - 27 456 727
Accumulated Depreciation(-) I ... (68)] (367) (435)
Net Book Value L | 203 89 2
Current Period End: 31 December 2015 1 .
Net Book Value at the beginning of the Period A o203 89 292
Additions i - - 334 - 334
Disposals(-), net e - -;_ - (£)) I &)
Depreciation (<) [ (68) (51 (119)
Impairment L ] -| B - =
ICost at Period End B - - 271 716 987
Accumulated Depreciation at Period End (-) - (136) {347) (483)
Closing Net Book Value -| 135 369 504
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{Continued)

12. Informations on intangible assets:

13.

14.

15.

16.

Current Period| Previous Period

30 June 2016 31 December 2015

Net Book Value ai the bezinning of the Period 468 191
Additions 383 433
Disposals(-), net - -
Depreciation (=) (152) (156)
Other () 699 468

Information en investment property:
None (31 December 2015: None).
Information on deferred tax asset:

The Bank calculates deferred tax asset or liability on the differences between the applied accounting
policies and valuation bases and tax legislation that comes from timing differences and reflects the
amount on the financial statements.

As of 30 June 2016, the Bank calculated deferred tax asset amounting TL 170 and reflected this
amount to the financial statements (31 December 2015; TL 627).

In the situation that the difference between the book value and value subject to tax of the
assets that are subject to deferred tax is related to equity accounts, deferred tax asset or liability is
netted with the relevant accounts in this group.

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Temporary Temporary

Differences off  Deferred Tax Differences of, Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Base Amount| Deferred Tax Base Amount

Financial loss - - 1,239 247
Provision for employee benefits 273 55 1,324 264
Expense provisions 108 22 400 80
Other 1055 211 738 147
Deferred Tax Asset, net 1.436 288 3,701 738
Depreciation {10) (2} - -
Other (72) (14} (556) (110
Deferred Tax Liability, net {82) (16) (556) (111)
Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability), net 1,354 272 3,145 627

Information on assets held for resale and discontinued operations:
None (31 December 2015: None).
Information on other assets:

As of 30 June 2016, other assets amount to TL 7,201 (31 December 2015: TL 4,738) and don’t
exceed 10% of total balance sheet except off balance sheet commitments.
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IL EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO LIABILITIES
1. Information on deposits:
The Bank has no deposits due to its nature as an investment bank.

2. Negative differences related to trading derivative financial liabilities:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC
IForward 4 2 10 :
Swap - - 10 28
Futures - - - s
Options - S A -
Other e S A -
Total - - 20 28
3. Information on borrowings:
a. Information on banks and other financial institutions:
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC
Borrowings from the CBRT - = - -
From Domestic Banks and Institutions 24,007 21,685 - 1,751
From Foreign Banks, Institutions and
Funds - 92,318 69,560
Total 24,007 114,003 - 71,311
Information on maturity structure of borrowings:
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC
Short-term 24,007 44,034 - 30,211
Medium and Long-term - 69,969 - 41,100
Total 24,007 114,003 - 71,311

Additional explanation related to the concentrations of the Bank’s major liabilities on the
basis of concentrations, fund providing customers, sector groups and other criteria where

risk concentration is observed

The Bank, funds its assets mainly with its capital and borrowings.
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued)
4.

Information on Repo Transactions:

30 June 2016 31 Pecember2015
TL FC TL FC
Financial Instituations 10,010 e S 5
Other - - - -
Total 10,010 - -
Securities Issued :
None (31 December 2015: None).
Information on Borrower Fund:
Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5
Demand |
I e,  Amonth |  Month |  Month | Year
30-Jun-16 s
__ Borrower fund | 67, -l -l el
S R W N—— -
31-Dec-15 | .
_ Bomowerfund | 10272, -] -1 -] -

Information on other foreign source :

As of 30 June 2016, other liabilities amount to TL 7,591 (31 December 2015: TL 5,338) and don’t
exceed 10% of total balance sheet except off balance sheet commitments.

Information on financial lease agreements:

30 June 2016 31 December2015

Gross Net Gross Net
Less Than 1 Year 5 - -
1-4 Years g i
More Than 4 Years -
Total - - ]

Information on hedging derivative financial liabilities:

None (31 December 2015: None).
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Continued)

10. Information on provisions:

a.

Information on general provisions:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Provisions for Group |. Loans and Receivables 3,100 2,130
Additional Provision for Loans and Receivables with
Extended Maturities - o =
Provisions for Group Il. Loans and Receivables - -
Additional Provision for Loans and Receivables with
Extended Maturities - -
Provisions for Non Cash Loans 292 253
Other 112 287
(General Provisions 3,513 2,670

Information on provisions related with foreign currency difference of foreign indexed
loans:

As of 30 June 2016, proivisions related with foreign currency difference of foreign indexed
loans amount 183 TL (31 December 2015: TL 167).

Information on specific provisions for non-cash loans that are non-funded and non-
transformed into cash:

None (31 December 2015: None).

Information on other provisions:

sas
1.

Information on provisions for possible risks:
None (31 December 2015: None).
Obligations related to employee rights:

In accordance with Turkish Labour Law, the reserve has been calculated by estimating the
present value of the future probable obligation of the Bank arising from the retirement of
its employees. TAS 19 necessitates the actuarial valuation methods to calculate liabilities
of enterprises. In this context, the following actuarial assumptions were used in the
calculation of total liabilities.

30 June 2016
3.49

31 December2015
3.49

Discount rate (%a)

The movement of employee termination benefits is shown below:

30 June 2016 31 December2015
Balance at the Beginning of the Period 234 160
Provisions Recognised During the Period (74) 74
Balance at the end of the period 160 234

In addition, as of 30 June 2016 the Bank have unused vacation provision of TL 113
(31 December 2015: TL 65).

Other provisions are explained if they exceed 10% of the total provision balance

Other provisions amount of TL 910; TL 648 is for bonus provisions and TL 262 for
ongoing lawsuits and other. (31 December 2015: TL 1,333).
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

11. Information on taxes payable:

a. Information on current year tax liability:

i)

Information on tax provision:

The Bank recognized TL 481, which is the remaining amount afier the deduction of
temporary taxes paid in the period from corporate tax, to financial statements as current tax

liability as of June 30, 2016 (December 31, 2015; None).

ii) Information on taxes payable:

30 June 2016] 31 December2015

Corporate Tax Payable 1,077 -
Taxation on Marketable Securities - 1
Property Tax | l
Banking Insurance Transaction Tax (BITT) 102 81
Iorcign Exchange Transaction Tax = &
Value Added Tax Payable 42 TR
Other 145 o 23
Total 1,367 407

iii) Information on premium payables:

30 June 2016) 31 December2015

Social Security Premiums — Employee 41 32
Social Security Premiums — Employer 46 37
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium- Employee - -
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium — Employer - -
Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions - Employce oy B
Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions - Employer & o
Unemployment Insurance — Employee 3 2
Unemployment Insurance ~ Employer 6 4
Other - -
Total 96 75

b. Information on deferred tax liability:

Explanations on the taxation of the Bank are presented in explanations and notes related to
unconsolidated assets.

12. Liabilities for assets held for sale and assets of discontinued operations

None (31 December 2015: None).

13. Information on the quantity, maturity date, interest rate and supplier firm of the subordinated
loans given to the bank and transactional option if there are any marketable securities

None (31 December2015: None).
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

14, Information on sharcholders’ equity:

a.

Presentation of paid-in capital:

I 30 June 2016
Common Stock - o 255,000[_
Preferred Stock , -

S ——— — T PPUGIIP R W——

31 December2015
255,000

Paid-in capital amount, explanation as to whether the registered share capital system is
applied and if so, amount of registered share capital ceiling:

The Bank does not apply the registered share capital system.

Information on share capital increases and their sources; other relevant information on
increased share capital in current period:

None.
Explanation on the transfers from capital reserve to paid-in capital in the current period:
None.

Information on capital commitments, the general purpose and the estimated sources for
these commitments until the end of the fiscal year and the subsequent interim period:

None (31 December 2015: None).

Information on the Bank’s income, profitability, prior period indicators on liquidity and
uncertainty on these indicators and their potential effects on the Bank’s capital:

The Bank considers there is no uncertainty regarding the prior period income, profitability and
liquidity indicators, therefore the Bank does not foresee an effect on capital.

Summary information about privileged shares representing the capital:
None (31 December 2015: None).

Information on marketable securities value increase fund:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
TL FC TL FC
From Subsidiaries, Affiliates and Joint ventures - - - -
Valuation difference (8) - (90) =
Rate difference - - - -
[Total (8). - (90} §
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{Continued)
II1. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS
1. Information on off-balance sheet commitments:

a. The amount and type of irrevocable commitments:

Irrevocable Commitments 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Forward Asset purchase and sale commitments - 16.912
Forward Deposit purchase and sale commitments - 2,009
Tax and fond liabilities from export commitment 2 25
Other Irrevocable commitments - -
Tatal 2 18,946

b. Type and amount of probable losses and obligations arising from off-balance sheet items

1. Non-cash loans including guarantees, bank acceptances, collaterals and others that
are accepted as financial commitments and other letter of credits:

As of 30 June 2016, the Bank has guarantee and indemnities amounting TL 146,225 (31
December 2015: TL 126,995) based upon the guarantee letter.

2. Revoeable, irrevocable guarantees and other similar commitments and contingencies

None (31 December 2015: None).

¢. Total amount of non-cash loans:

I 30 June 20165 _31 December 2015,
Non-cush Loans ¢ s Given against Cash Loans 59, 424 — A
~ With Original Maturity of 1 Year or Less Than 1 Year 1l 7, 500_’_ e
~ With Original Maturity of More Than | Year . 51,924 22,091
Other Non-cash Loans R 86, 800 1o4,904
Total 146,224 126,995

d. Information on sectoral risk concentrations of non-cash loans:

N o Current Period Prior Period
. 1 30 June 2016 - 31 December 2015~
_ B TR e FCl (R L[ (k)| FC[ (%)
Agricultural - - =) B 1 SRT=] 1
Farming and Raising Livestock o - e - | -] L -
Forestry - el - -
Fishing - 23 Y S W IS
Manufacturing 1 1319] t49] 15301 2679] 1845 S~ 3.09| 14,686 2181
Mining e o - - -| - -l
Production U39l 1490 15301 2679] 1.730] 790 i4g86| 38
Electric, Gasand Water - - : - 115 019 - -
Construction 3230 3621 8356l 14.99 3 130 525 6929] 10.29
Services o o 84,556 94.89| 33,257 58, 23| 54690 9166 45715 67.89
Wholesale and Retail Trade 6.620 743| 7572] 1326] 33241| 5570 206511 3067
Hotel, Food and Beverage Services 1061 [ 1241 - AT B57) - -
Transportation and Telecommunication 9200, 1032 4321 076 - -l 2714F 403
Financial Institutions 54,175 60807 22904| 4010 16337| 2738 22.350 33.19
Real Estate and Leasing Services 3,500 393[ 2349] 411 - : - -
Self~Employment Services = - - - - -] -
Education Services e = - - - - -l __‘l -
Heaith and Sacial Services - - - - -] -
Other ) 1 - - -] -
Total | 89,105 10000 57,119 100.00| 59,665 100.00 67330 100.00
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

e. Information on the non-cash loans classified in Group I and Group II:

30 June 2016 Group | Group II

TL FC TL FC
Non-Cash Leans 89,105 57,119 - -
Letters of Guarantee 89,105 43,394 s =
Bank Acceptances = - - -
Letters of Credit - 13,725 - -

Endorsements - = & -
Underwriting Commitments - - s -
Factoring Guarantees - - s -
Other Commitments and Contingencies - - S -

2. Information on derivative transactions:

30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Forward foreign curreny purchase - 3,835
transactions
Forward foreign curreny sell - 3,794
transactions
Currency swap-buy 6,924 32,122
Currency swap-sell 6,416 31,465
Toplam 13,340 71,216

3. Information on credit derivatives and related imposed risks:

None (31 December 2015: None).
4. Information on Contingent Assets and Liabilities:
(i) Contingent assels
None
(it) Contingent liabilities
As of 30 June 2016, the Bank has reflected the provision for its ongoing lawsuits amounting
TL 262 to the financial statements. The process regarding the law suits is still ongoing and decisions

will be finalised afier trial.

The Bank issued indemnification letters in favour of its members of Board of Directors to protect
them against possible claims.

5. Information on services in the name of others’ names and accounts:

None (31 December 2015: None).
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

IV. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO INCOME STATEMENT

1. Information on interest income:

a.

d.

Information on interest income on loans:

30 June 2016 30 June 2015
TL FC TL FC
Short-term Loans 13,516 238 5,428 223
Medium/Long-term Loans 475 1,238 49 -
Interest on Loans Under Follow-up - - - -
Premiums Received from Resource Utilisation
Support Fund - 5 - -
Total 13,991 1,476 5,477 223
Information on interest income on banks:
30 June 2016 30 June 2015
TL FC TL FC
From the CBRT 64 - 8 -
FFrom Domestic Banks 807 - 4,350 |
From Foreign Banks 118 11 122 9
Headquarters and Branches Abroad - - - -
Total 939, 11 4,480 10
Information on interest income on marketable securities:
30 June 2016 30 June 2015
TL FC TL FC
From Trading Financial Assets - - - -
From Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or i ) ) |
Loss
From Available-for-sale Financial Assets 867 - 921 -
From Held-to-Maturity Invesiments - o - -
Total 867 - 921 -

Information on interest income received from investments in associates and subsidiaries:

None (30 June 2015: None).
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

2

Information on interest expense:

a. Information on interest expense on borrowings:
30 June 2016 30 June 2015
TL FC TU FC
Banks 247 1,230 i 179
The CBRT - - - -
Domestic Banks 51 56 | 8
Foreign Banks 196 1,174 - 171
Headquarters and Branches Abroad a B -
Other Institutions - - - -
Total 247 1,230 1 179
b. Information on interest expense given to investments in associates and subsidiaries:
None (30 June 2015: None).
c. Maturity structure of the interest expense on deposits:
None (30 June 2015: None).
d. Interest expense on issued marketable securities:
None (30 June 2015: None).
Information on dividend income:
None (30 June 2015: None).
Information on trading income/loss (Net):
| 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
Income 9,832 4,287
Income from Capital Market Transactions 17 -
Income from Derivative Financial Transactions (*) 1,336 156
Foreign Exchange Gains 8,479 4,131
Loss () 8,935 4,294
Loss from Capital Market Transactions - 464
Loss from Derivative Financial Transactions (*) 433 458
Foreign Exchange Loss 8,502 3372
897 N

g

and loss from derivative financial transactions.

' Due to the short maturity of derivative financial instruments held by the Bank, changes in exchange rate creates gains
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EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

5.

Information on other operating income:

Other operating income includes cancellation of TL 7 per participant addendum, other operating
income consists of TL 105 income from previous years’ provision cancellations addendum and there
is no income regarding extraordinary accounts. (30 June 2015: TL 2)

Provision expenses related to loans and other receivables:

30 June 2016 30 June 2015
Specific Provisions for Loans and Other Receivables - ]
11l. Group Loans and Receivables .
1V. Group Loans and Receivables - -
V. Group Loans and Reccivables - -
General Provision Expenses 843 o 842
Provision Expense for Possible Risks - -
Marketable Securitics Impairment Expense - -
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - &
Available-for-sale Financial Assets - -
Investments in Associates, Subsidiaries and Held-to-
Maturity Securities Value Decrease o -
Investments in Associates -
Subsidiaries . -
Joint Ventures - -
Held-to-Maturity Investments - -
Other 5 .
Total 843 842
Information related to other operating expenses:
30 June 2016 30 June 2015
Personnel Expenses 3.863 2,686
Reserve For Employee Termination Benefits 79 42
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Deficit Provision g S
Impairment Expenses of Fixed Assels - .
Depreciation Expenses of Fixed Assels 98 55
Impairment Expenses of Intangible Assets - -
Goodwill impairment expenses - -
Amortisation Expenses of Intangible Assets 152 68
[mpairment Expenses of Equity Participations for which
Equity Method is Applied - -
Impairment Expenses of Assets Held For Resale - -
Depreciation Expenses of Assets Held for Resale - -
Impairment Expenses of Fixed Assets Held for Sale s =
Other Operating Expenses 2,633 1.639
Operational Lease Expenses 722 534
Mainienance Expenses 6 .
Advertising Expenses 376 ]
Other Expense 1,529 1,104
Loss on Sales of Assets S .
Other 643 1,259
Total 7468 5,749

72



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED
UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
IN TURKISH, SEE NOTE 1 OF SECTION THREE

PASHA YATIRIM BANKASI A.S.
NOTES TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2016

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise stated.)
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{Continued)

8. Information on income/(loss) before tax from continuing or discontinued operations:

Loss before tax comes from net interest income amounting TL 15,219, net commission fee income
amounting TL 571, trading loss amounting TL 897, other operating income amounting TL 114,
provision for loan losses and other receivables amounting to TL 843 and other operating expenses
amounting TL 7,468.

9. Information on provision for taxes from continuing or discontinued operations:

As of 30 June 2016 the Bank has current tax expense TL 1,558 TL (30 June 2015: None). The Bank
has deferred tax loss amounting to TL 307 (30 June 2015: TL 1,135).

As of 30 June 2016, the Bank doesn’t have any discontinued operations.
10. Information on net income/(loss) from continuing or discontinued operations:

The Bank doesn’t have discontinued operations. The Bank’s net profit from continuing operations
amounting to TL 6,625 (30 June 2015: TL 3,642 loss).

11. Information on net income/(loss) for the period:

a. If the disclosure of ordinary banking transactions and the composition of income and
expense items is necessary to understand the annual performance of Bank, the
composition and amount of these items:

None (30 June 2015: None).

b. If an accounting estimate change significantly affects the profit/loss in the current period
or has a probability to significantly affect the profit/loss in the subsequent periods, the
overall effect is disclosed:

There is no significant change in accounting estimates which would affect the current or the
subsequent periods.

12. Disclosure of 20% of sub-accounts in the case of other line items exceed 10% of the income
statement total.

Information related to other income and disclosure and footnotes related to income statement and
information related to other expenses and disclosure and footnotes related to income statement are
presented in footnote numbered 5 and footnote numbered 7 respectively.
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V. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN THE
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

1. Information on available-for-sale financial assets:
“Unrealized gains and losses” arising from changes in the fair value of securities classified as
available-for-sale are not recognized in current year income statements; they are recognized in the

“Marketable securities value increase fund” account under equity, until the financial assets are sold,
disposed or impaired.

There is loss for marketable securities valuation difference related to available-for-sale financial
assets of TL 8 (31 December 2015: TL 90),

2.  Amounts transferred to legal reserves:
The Bank has no amounts transferred to legal reserves for current period.
3. Information on distribution of profit:

No dividend distribution has been announced afier the balance sheet date.
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VI.

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

1. Information on cash and cash equivalents:

Components of cash and cash equivalents and the accounting policy applied in their determination:

The effect of any change in the accounting policy of current period and the balance sheet recorded
amounts of the components that make up cash and cash equivalents (excluding rediscount balances,
reserve requirements, placements with maturity longer than 3 months and blocked accounts) are

considered as cash and cash equivalents,

a. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period:

30 June 2016 30 June 2015

Cash 15,059 3,717
Cash, Foreign Currency and Other 24 17
T.C. Central Bank 15,035 3,700
Other - -
Cash Equivalents 31,613 94,323
Banks 20,309 94,323
Interbank Money Market Placements 11,304 -
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 46,672 98.040
Blocked amounts on cash and cash equivalents - -
Interest income rediscounts on cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash equivalents with a matunity longer than three months - -
Unrestricted reserve deposits (14,623) (2,955)
Cash Flow Statements Cash and Cash Equivalents 32,049 95,085

2. Explanation about other cash flows items and the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates

on cash and cash equivalents:

The “Other” items presented in “Net operating income before changes in operating assets and
liabilities” amount to TL 6,325 (30 June 2015: TL [,902) mainly consists foreign exchange gain and
loss items and other operating expenses excluding fees and commissions paid, trading gains/losses

and other operating expenses excluding personnel expenses.

The “Net increase/decrease in other liabilities” item under “Changes in operating assets and
liabilities” amounting to TL 4,182 (30 June 2015: TL 2,604) consists of mainly changes in prepaid

expenses amd other assets.

The “Net increase/decrease in other liabilities” item under “Changes in operating assets and
liabilities” amounting to TL 3,695 (30 June 2015: 2,968) consists of mainly changes in miscellaneous

payables, other liabilities and taxes and other duties payable.
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VIL EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO THE BANK'’S RISK GROUP

1. The volume of transactions relating to the Bank’s risk group, outstanding loan and deposit
transactions and profit and loss of the period:

a. Current Period (30 June 2016):

Other real nnd legal persons tha

Investments in Associates, Direct and indirect shareholders  have been included in the ris

{Banks® Risk Group | subsidiaries and jointventures, =~ oftheBank groy
1 Cash  Non-Cash Cashy Non-Cash ___Cash Non-Cashy
Loans and Other ! | |
Receivables [ | 1 I - . ]
Beginning of the | | | | |
Perld e sl o Wl : RERRPTIR, -1 2
EndofthePenod | - el 22644 -| -

nterest and Cnmmissinnll— | i |

Encomc Received | - -l - 114 - -

Previous Period (31 December 2015):

Investments in Associates, Direct and indircct shareholders  have been included in the ris
Banks® Risk Group | _subsidiaries and joint ventures __ of the Bank B grou
' Cash  Non-Cashi  Cash _ Nan-Cash| Cash Non-Cash

I

‘Other real and legal persons thaﬂ

ILoans and Other

feceivables
Beginning of the

_Period , -]

| P S | S | R
_EndofthePeriod | | - =} 22475 8,082 30,227

nterest and [
ommission [ncome I

eceived | - -

| -

98 74 40

b. Information on deposits of the Bank’s risk group:
The Bank doesn’t have any deposits since it is an investment bank.

c. Information on forward and option agreements and other similar agreements made with
the Bank’s risk group:

No option and forward aggreements with the Bank’s Risk Group. (31 December2015: None).

As of 30 June 2016, there is no amount for current account of risk group (31 December 2015:
TL 10,213).

d. Information on key management compensation:

As of 30 June 2016, key management compensation amount is TL 1,395 (30 June 2015: TL
606).

VIII. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO THE DOMESTIC, FOREIGN, OFF-SHORE
BRANCHES AND FOREIGN REPRESENTATIVES OF THE BANK

None (31 December 2015: None).
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SECTION SIX

OTHER EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES

I. OTHER EXPLANATIONS RELATED TO OPERATIONS OF THE BANK
None.

1L EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
None.

II1. EXPLANATIONS ON REVIEW REPORT
The unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016 have been reviewed by Giiney
Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miisavirlik AS.
(E&Y) and the independent auditor’s review report dated 08 August 2016 has been presented with the
unconsolidated financial statements.

IV. EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES PREPARED BY INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

None (31 December 2015: None).

.........................
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SECTION SEVEN
Explanation related for Interim financial report

Message from the Chairman

In accordance with PASHA Bank Turkey’s strategic and operational targets, we have completed the second quarter
of 2016 with a profit of TL 6,6 million, which raised up 82% by comparison with the same period of previous year.
We preserved the quality of our assets, expanded our credits and balance sheet in a steady manner while the wise
strategies are crucial in this period. PASHA Bank has continued eamning new customers and maintained its support
to the entrepreneurs and the Turkish economy in this period respecting its corporate values and shareholders
aspirations.

The total amount of cash loans utilized to our customers has become TL 326,8 million, while total assets has reached
TL 399,2 million. The total equities of PASHA Bank, as the primary source of funding has stood at TL 237,3
Million, whereas borrrowings due to credit institutions reached to TL 138 Million by increasing up 94% since year-
end. As a result of prudent credit policies pursued by our Bank, the ratio of NPL to total loans has realized as %0
as we had achieved in the previous period.

During this period we have accelerated our activities to increase and diversify our funding sources and stepped
forward in line with our priority for sustainable growth so as to focused on increasing the operational efficiency,
whilst we fulfilled our target for sustainable profitability in this quarter.

PASHA Bank’s determination to apply best class corporate governance principles, its willingness to manage this
process dynamically and continuously, and finally the progress achieved the last year has been confirmed by an
independent rating agency and our corporate governance rating is increased to 9,26 from previous rating 8,94,

Bank debuted large scale PR activities in 2016 as another key strategic move to increase recognition of the PASHA
Bank brand among the target audience and continued to reinforce brand awareness by participating to the seminars
and sponsorships after two years of its succesfull operations.

Despite several external shocks Turkey’s economic growth has shown resilience in 2015. We positively think that
the worst adversities are left behind for economies of both Turkey and Azerbaijan in the last year and we anticipate
positive sentiments for the rest of the year.

We are working hard to achieve our business goals in 2016 and with an effort to expand our array of products and
services in line with the needs and expectations of our customers.

Our operations, ever increasing cooperation among Turkey-Azerbaijan-Georgia and the synergy among our three
banks positioned in this triangle has been reinforcing our faith to gain higher share in the trade and investment
volume increasing in our target region. [ am looking forward to have an operating period with positive developments
reflected in the forthcoming quarters and towards its economic potential; the trade relations among Turkey-
Azerbaijan-Georgia are enhanced and the long term joint projects are increasingly continued.

I would like to thank our valued employees and our management team for their dedicated professional work, our
shareholders and all business partners for their valuable support, and our customers for their confidence in PASHA
Bank.

Sincerely Yours,
Agha Ali Kamalov
Chairman
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Message of General Manager

Despite all the global and geopolitical developments, In the second quarter of 2016 was followed by a fairly
moderate course as in the first quarter.Durable position of Turkish Lira against exchange rates and showing a falling
tendency in the expected inflation, strengthen the Central Bank of Turkey to impose reductions in interest rates and
conduce to started simplification process.We think with the effect of domestic consumption and public expenditure
Turkey's economy in the second quarter continued moderate growth as well as in the first quarter with a high growth
ratio 4.8%.US Central Banks of the Fed's interest rate increases would process, due to the decision to exit from
England towards the European Union, which causes the acceleration in capital inflows to emerging market
countries; Japan, Europe, and of the latest developments the announcement of Bank of England give weight to the
expansionist policies releases the moral source in the market.

All with this positive developments there is an ongoing profitability in the banking sector. Turkish banking sector
continued to maintain a capital adequacy ratio of 15% with a strong capital structure and asset quality. As of the
end of June, make profit of 6,6 million TL we as PASHA Bank were able to maintain our goal of sustained

profitability.

We continued our advertising activities of the bank in the second quarter of the year. We continued to strengthen
our relations work with the Turkish-Azeri businessmen in cooperation with the Foreign Economic Relations Board,
we have been involved in various projects and Turkey-based trade volume between Azerbaijan to develop by
providing sponsorship to the organization we have increased the bank’s awareness in both countries. "Best Financial
Investment of the Year" award by Ekovitrin Magazine was proud us and our shareholders. We will continue to
expand our customer portfolio and increase the resource diversity in second half of the year.In the second half of
2016 and I wish to have a nice stable period for the Turkish economy and extend my respect.

H. Cenk Eynehan
General Manager and Member of the Board of Directors
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A. ENTRY

1. Amendments made in Articles of Incorporation within the period

There is no amendment in the Articles of Incorporation within the period.

2. Significant Events and Transactions within the Period
There is no significant change related to information except for the disclosures including numeric

information in financial statements included in annual activity report prepared in accordance with

Regulation on Procedures and Principals related to Preparation and Publication of Activity Report.

B. NON-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND 1ST QUARTER REVIEWS

(K TL) 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
Cash assets and Central Bank 15,059 12,663
Marketable Securities in the tradebook 408 604
Marketable Securities 16,539 9,619
Payables to Money market and Banks 31,613 47,357
Loans 326,785 245,744
Related Company - -
Other Assets 8,831 6,418
Total Assets 399,325 322,405
Credits obtained 138,010 71,311
Payables to Money market 10,010 -
Other Liabilities 13,956 20,542
Paid in Capital 255,000 255,000
Profit Reserves 324 324
Marketable Securities Valuation Difference (8) (50)
Accumulated profit / loss {24,682) (33,469)
Net Profit / Loss 6,625 8,787
Total Liabilities 399,235 322,405
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PASHA Bank 2ND QUARTER REVIEWS

The Bank has completed second quarter of 2016 with a profit number of TL 6,625 according to
non-consolidated data. Total non-consolidated assets of the Bank is TL 399,235 with a 24%
increase compared to 2015 year-end. The Bank continues its operations through headquarter units
as of June 30, 2016.

The share of our securities in balance sheet is 4%. The credits are TL 326,785 increasing at a ratio
of 33% compared to year end of 2015. The share of credits in total assets is §2%.

The capital adequacy ratio of the Bank is 66.49% as of June 30, 2016. The bank has a strong
financial structure thanks to its strong capital and asset quality.

C. EXPECTATIONS OF PASHA BANK REGARDING 2016

Pasha Bank preserves it expectations included in activity report of 2016 and anticipates an inflation
rate of 7.5-8% and an economic growth of 3.5-4% in Turkey. The Bank also anticipates that the
ratio of current deficit to GDP will be 4-.4.5% and unemployment rate of 10.50%.
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